

















MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

Monday, April 25, 2022
1:00 PM

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order by President Holcombe at 1:01 PM.

All attendees participated electronically pursuant to California Government Code sections 54953(b)(1),
(b)(2), (e)(1) and (e)(3) (AB 361).

Directors Present:

Polly Holcombe, Carpinteria Valley Water District
Kristen Sneddon, City of Santa Barbara

Lauren Hanson, Goleta Water District

Cori Hayman, Montecito Water District

General Counsel Present:
William Carter - Musick, Peeler, Garrett, LLP

Staff Present:

Janet Gingras, General Manager Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager
Edward Lyons, Administrative Manager/CFO Dorothy Turner, Administrative Assistant
Joel Degner, Engineer/Operations Division Manager

Others Present:
Joshua Haggmark, City of Santa Barbara Stephen Torigiani, Young, Wooldridge LLP

Catherine Taylor, City of Santa Barbara Matt Young, COSB Water Agency

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.
CONSENT AGENDA

a. Minutes of March 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
b. Investment of Funds

Financial Reports

Investment Reports
c. Review of Paid Claims

Ms. Gingras presented the Consent Agenda items and asked Mr. Lyons to review the Paid Claims
report. Mr. Lyons drew the Board’s attention to various paid claims of note, including remittances to
Hudson Waterproofing, Integra Chemical Co., Westfork Environmental, Atlas Performance Industries
and Reclamation. He fielded questions from the Board.

Item #3a
Page 1



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
April 25, 2022

Director Hayman motioned to approve the Consent Agenda items, followed by a second from Director
Hanson. The motion carried unanimously with a vote of six in favor.

Ayes: Hayman, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays:

Absent:  Sneddon

Abstain

4, VERBAL REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES

Administrative Committee Meeting — April 14, 2022 — President Holcombe reported that
the committee had received a third quarter financial review and held a discussion
regarding the continued state of emergency, both of which will be presented to the Board
during this meeting.

Special Operations Committee Meeting — April 19, 2022 — Director Sneddon state that
the committee had received information regarding the purchase a new Operations vehicle
which is included in this agenda with a recommendation to approve.

5. RESOLUTION NO. 747 - CONFIRMATION OF LOCAL EMERGENCY -
ACKNOWLEGEMENT OF GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S DECLARED STATE OF
EMERGENCY (HEALTH AND SAFETY)

Ms. Gingras presented this item, providing a summary of the recent statistics surrounding the incidence
of COVID-19 and concerns regarding staffing. A lengthy discussion followed among the Board
members.

Director Hanson provided a motion to approve the resolution regarding the state of emergency. Director
Sneddon seconded and the motion carried with a vote of five aye votes and one nay vote.

Ayes: Sneddon, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays: Hayman

Absent:

Abstain

6. FINANCIAL REVIEW - 3P QUARTER FY 2022

Mr. Lyons shared his presentation of the third quarter financial review with the Board. He reviewed
revenues received during the quarter as well as expenditures by division. He provided explanation for
any variances in comparison to the budget and noted that fourth quarter forecasts are based on Fiscal
Year 2022-23 budgeting efforts currently under way. Finally, Mr. Lyons reviewed the status of the
various Administrative Division’s deliverables.

7. RATIFICATION OF ADDENDUM TO EMERGENCY ENGINEERING CONTRACT -
ORTEGA RESERVOIR REPAIR

Mr. Degner provided the Board with a review of the emergency situation that arose at Ortega Reservoir
and the mitigation and repair efforts undertaken by staff and contractors. Due to the emergency nature
of the incident, it was necessary to come back to board to ratify certain expenses that exceeded

Item #3a
Page 2



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
April 25, 2022

expectations. Mr. Degner provided support for the additional expenses and fielded comments from
Board Members.

Director Sneddon motioned to ratify the additional expense. Director Hanson seconded the motion
which passed unanimously with a vote of six in favor;

Ayes: Sneddon, Hayman, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays:

Absent:

Abstain

8. OPERATIONS DIVISION REPLACEMENT FLEET VEHICLE PURCHASE

Mr. Degner presented this item to replace the 2007 Chevy Silverado, which is unsafe for its intended
use. The division is in need of a dedicated vehicle capable of towing heavy equipment. He requested
approval to purchase one or the other of two quoted vehicles and noted that the National Auto Fleet
Group vehicle was preferred, which, if available will be less costly. As well, he described several
anticipated advantages to the new vehicle, including fuel efficiency and bio-diesel compatibility. Ms.
Gingras also advised the Board that the 2007 Silverado will be offered at public auction in order to
recoup some of the cost.

Director Hayman motioned to approve the purchase not to exceed $85,000, followed by a second from
Director Sneddon. The motion carried with a vote of six in favor.

Ayes: Sneddon, Hayman, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays:
Absent:
Abstain
9. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

Administration
Meetings
2021-2022 Accomplishments / Internal Goals

Ms. Gingras presented her General Manager report, highlighting the status of the annual operating
budget, the imminent demolition of the accounting trailer, contracts executed during the third quarter
and meetings attended by staff. She included her annual list of COMB prior year accomplishments and
goals for 2022-23. Ms. Gingras noted receipt of the DDW permit and advised that grant funding
reporting for the secured pipeline was already under way. She fielded comments of appreciation from
the Board with respect to the list of accomplishments and goals.

10. ENGINEER’S REPORT

Climate Conditions and Water Quality
Lake Elevation Projections

La Mirada Line Valve Project
Infrastructure Improvement Projects

Mr. Degner presented the Engineer’s report which highlighted climate conditions and their impact on
lake elevation, water quality, deployment of the EPFP. as well as the anticipated secured pipeline
project. He advised the Board of the estimated amount of the Parent District’s water rights release. Mr.

Item #3a
Page 3



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
April 25, 2022

Degner provided an update on the bid status for the Secured Pipeline project, noting modifications
needed to the permits. Additionally, he reported that the La Mirada project was complete and had gone
smoothly. Staff’s current focus is now routine structure maintenance, weed abatement and the SCADA
server upgrade. Finally he noted that the Schedule F AVAR BO shutdown had been deferred to
November, 2022. Mr. Degner fielded questions from the Board.

11. OPERATIONS DIVISION REPORT

Lake Cachuma Operations
Operation and Maintenance Activities

Mr. Degner presented the Operations Division report noting that staff had been very busy with
construction projects. He reported that staff had been staged on or near the construction sites for
oversight as well as availability should an unexpected event occur requiring assistance. Operations staff
is now catching up on routine tasks. He reported that valve exercising has been under way and
elaborated on the final tasks surrounding the completion of the Ortega pipeline repair. Mr. Degner
fielded comments from the Board.

12. FISHERIES DIVISION REPORT

LSYR Steelhead Monitoring Elements
Tributary Project Updates

Surcharge Water Accounting
Reporting/Outreach/Training

Mr. Robinson presented the Fisheries Division report, first clarifying for the Board that permits for the
Emergency Pumping Facility apply to the entire project which includes the modifications required for
the Secured Pipeline. He noted that target flows to Hilton Creek continue to maintain the fishery. Mr.
Robinson reported COMB has secured landowner permissions to install the planned USGS flow
monitoring station upstream of the Highway 154 Bridge which will improve the accuracy of target flow
measurements and water quality monitoring. The next step is to secure the required permits. Finally he
noted the end of the trapping season and summarized the normal monitoring activities as well as
reporting the recent hiring of two new seasonal staff. Mr. Robinson fielded questions from the Board.

13. PROGRESS REPORT ON LAKE CACHUMA OAK TREE PROGRAM
Maintenance and Monitoring
Mr. Robinson, in presenting the Oak Tree report, commented once again that the lack of recent rain
requiring staff to continue irrigation efforts. Additionally, he noted that the participants in a recent
large event at Live Oak Campground successfully took care to protect the new oak tree seedlings
recently planted by staff.
14, MONTHLY CACHUMA PROJECT REPORTS
a. Cachuma Water Reports
b. Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

c. Lake Cachuma Quagga Survey

Ms. Gingras commented that CCWA continues to deliver water from the State Water Project to
Cachuma Lake. She advised that the water reports represented an otherwise unexceptional month.

Item #3a
Page 4



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
April 25, 2022

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

DIRECTORS’ REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETING
There were no agenda requests from directors.

[CLOSED SESSION]: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: POTENTIAL
LITIGATION
a. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] Potential Litigation: Conference with Legal Counsel

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 3:15 PM.

[CLOSED SESSION]: ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
a. [Government Code Section 54957(b)(1)] Title: General Manager

[CLOSED SESSION]: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
a. [Government Code Section 54957.6(a)]
Agency designated representatives: Board President
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
[Government Code Section 54957.7]
Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable
[Government Code Section 54957.1]

16a. Potential Litigation: Conference with Legal Counsel
17a. Annual Performance Review — General Manager
18a. Conference with Labor Negotiators

The Board reconvened into Open Session at 3:47 PM. Mr. Carter reported out of Closed Session as
follows:

With respect to Item #16a there was no reportable action.
With respect to Item #17a there was no reportable action.

With respect to Item #18a the Board President was directed to negotiate and speak with the General
Manager regarding the proposed labor agreement.

MODIFICATION OF GENERAL MANAGER’S COMPENSATION

President Holcombe thanked Janet Gingras, General Manager, for her stellar leadership, hard work and
prolific accomplishments. President Holcombe advised that the Board intends to extend Ms. Gingras’
contract term through 2026. Director Hanson, with enthusiasm, put forth the motion to extend the
contract followed by an equally enthusiast second from Director Sneddon. The motion carried
unanimously with a vote of six in favor.

Ayes: Sneddon, Hayman, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays:

Absent:

Abstain

President Holcombe then advised Ms. Gingras that the Board was happy to increase Ms. Gingras’ salary
by 5.17%, effective April 1, 2022. Director Sneddon motioned to approve the increase. Director Hanson
seconded the motion which carried unanimously with a vote of six in favor.

Item #3a
Page 5



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
April 25, 2022

21.

22,

Ayes: Sneddon, Hayman, Hanson, Holcombe
Nays:

Absent:

Abstain

MEETING SCHEDULE
Special Board Meeting — May 12, 2022 at 10:00 AM
Regular Board Meeting — May 23, 2022 at 1:00 PM
Board Packages available on COMB website www.cachuma-board.org

COMB ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:56 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Janet Gingras, Secretary of the Board

Approved

V Unapproved

APPROVED:

Polly Holcombe, President of the Board

Item #3a
Page 6



ASSETS

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Statement of Net Position

As of April 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Trust Funds

1210 - Warren Act Trust Fund
1220 - Renewal Fund

Total Trust Funds
1050 - General Fund
1100 - Revolving Fund

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable

1301 - Accounts Receivable

1320 - Quarterly Assessments Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1010 - Petty Cash
1200 - LAIF
1303 - Bradbury SOD Act Assessments Receivable

1304 - Lauro Dam SOD Assessments Receivable

1400 - Prepaid Insurance
1900 - Deposits

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

1500
1505

1510 -
1515 -
1525 -
1550 -

- Vehicles

- Office Furniture & Equipment
Mobile Offices

Field Equipment

Paving

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

1910
1920
1922
1923

- Long Term Bradbury SOD Act Assessments Receivable

- Long Term Lauro SOD Act Assessments Receivable

- Deferred Outflow of Resources (GASB 68)
- Deferred Outflow (GASB 75)

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2022-04 COMB Stmt of Net Position.xIsx

$ 220,681.72
74,033.06

April 30, 2022

$

294,714.78
776,596.19
217,632.10

1,288,943.07

1,570.00
1,103,953.00

1,105,523.00

500.00
1,117,561.33
213,957.00
32,837.16
10,656.72
236,109.85

1,611,622.06

4,006,088.13

468,728.36
236,471.87
97,803.34
523,998.79
38,351.00

(1,218,759.00)

146,594.36

4,057,372.07
739,312.90
497,209.00
870,598.00

6,164,491.97

$

10,317,174.46

Item #3b
Page 1



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Statement of Net Position
As of April 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
April 30, 2022
LIABILITIES & NET POSITION
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2200 - Accounts Payable $ 29,010.05
Total Accounts Payable 29,010.05
Other Current Liabilities
2505 - Accrued Wages 20,168.77
2550 - Vacation/Sick 202,762.73
2561 - Bradbury Dam SOD Act 213,956.99
2563 - Lauro Dam SOD Act 32,837.16
2565 - Accrued Interest SOD Act 46,692.00
2590 - Deferred Revenue 294,714.78
2595 - Deferred Revenue - Oak Tree 17,943.10
Total Other Current Liabilities 829,075.53
Total Current Liabilities 858,085.58
Long Term Liabilities
2602 - Long Term SOD Act Liability-Bradbury 4,057,362.07
2603 - Long Term SOD Act Liability - Lauro 739,312.90
2604 - OPEB Long Term Liability 5,789,486.00
2610 - Net Pension Liability (GASB 68) 2,078,203.00
2611 - Deferred Inflow of Resources (GASB 68) 103,202.00
2612 - Deferred Inflow of Resources (GASB 75) 588,356.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 13,355,921.97
Total Liabilities 14,214,007.55
Net Position
3000 - Opening Balance Net Position (5,296,580.05)
3901 - Retained Net Assets (521,650.49)
Net Surplus / Deficit 1,921,397.45
Total Net Position (3,896,833.09)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION $ 10,317,174.46
2022-04 COMB Stmt of Net Position.xlsx Item #3b

Page 2



Revenue

3000 REVENUE

3001 -
3006 -
3007 -
3009 -
3010 -

3014

O&M Budget (Qtrly Assessments)

Warren Act

Renewal Fund

EPFP Loan (Qtrly Assessments)

Interest Income

- Non-Member Agency Revenue
3021 -
3035 -

Grant Income

Cachuma Project Betterment Fund

Total 3000 REVENUE

Expense

3100 - LABOR - OPERATIONS
3200 VEH & EQUIPMENT

3201 -
3202 -

3203

Vehicle/Equip Mtce
Fixed Capital

- Equipment Rental
3204 -

Miscellaneous

Total 3200 VEH & EQUIPMENT
3300 - CONTRACT LABOR

3301
3302

- Conduit, Meter, Valve & Misc
- Buildings & Roads

3303 -
3304 -

Reservoirs

Engineering, Misc Services

Total 3300 - CONTRACT LABOR
3400 - MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

3401 -
3402 -
3403 -

Conduit, Meter, Valve & Misc
Buildings & Roads
Reservoirs

Total 3400 - MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
3500 - OTHER EXPENSES

3501 -
3502 -
3503 -
3504 -
3505 -
3506 -

Utilities

Uniforms
Communications
USA & Other Services
Miscellaneous

Training

Total 3500 - OTHER EXPENSES
4100 - LABOR - FISHERIES
4200 - VEHICLES & EQUIP - FISHERIES

4270 -

Vehicle/Equip Mtce

2022-04 Rev & Exp Stmt.xIsx

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (Unaudited)

Budget vs. Actuals  July 2021 - June 2022

Fisheries Operations TOTAL
$ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under)
Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget
$ 1,113,930.30 $ 1,073,752.00 $ 40,178.30 103.74%  $ 3,865,221.00 $ 3,865,221.00 $ - 100.0%  $ 4,979,151.30 $ 4,938,973.00 $ 40,178.30 100.81%
43,086.00 43,086.00 0.00 100.0% 0.00 43,086.00 43,086.00 0.00 100.0%
120,996.46 220,175.00 -99,178.54 54.96% 0.00 120,996.46 220,175.00 -99,178.54 54.96%
0.00 38,620.56 0.00 38,620.56 100.0% 38,620.56 0.00 38,620.56 100.0%
0.00 3,481.76 0.00 3,481.76 100.0% 3,481.76 0.00 3,481.76 100.0%
22,300.00 0.00 22,300.00 100.0% 0.00 22,300.00 0.00 22,300.00 100.0%
0.00 510.00 0.00 510.00 100.0% 510.00 0.00 510.00 100.0%
90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 100.0% 0.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 0.00 100.0%
$ 1,390,312.76 $ 1,427,013.00 $ (36,700.24) 97.43% $ 3,907,833.32 $ 3,865,221.00 $ 42,612.32 101.1% $ 5,298,146.08 $ 5,292,234.00 $ 5,912.08 100.11%
$ - - $ - 0.0% $ 728,446.55 $ 1,023,887.00 $  (295,440.45) 71.15% @ $ 728,446.55 $ 1,023,887.00 $ (295,440.45) 71.15%
0.00 24,281.32 35,000.00 -10,718.68 69.38% 24,281.32 35,000.00 -10,718.68 69.38%
0.00 1,761.73 65,000.00 -63,238.27 2.71% 1,761.73 65,000.00 -63,238.27 2.71%
0.00 363.44 5,000.00 -4,636.56 7.27% 363.44 5,000.00 -4,636.56 7.27%
0.00 2,559.89 10,000.00 -7,440.11 25.6% 2,559.89 10,000.00 -7,440.11 25.6%
0.00 28,966.38 115,000.00 -86,033.62 25.19% 28,966.38 115,000.00 -86,033.62 25.19%
0.00 10,210.00 20,000.00 -9,790.00 51.05% 10,210.00 20,000.00 -9,790.00 51.05%
0.00 38,202.98 20,000.00 18,202.98 191.02% 38,202.98 20,000.00 18,202.98 191.02%
0.00 33,183.23 60,000.00 -26,816.77 55.31% 33,183.23 60,000.00 -26,816.77 55.31%
0.00 44,400.00 30,000.00 14,400.00 148.0% 44,400.00 30,000.00 14,400.00 148.0%
0.00 125,996.21 130,000.00 -4,003.79 96.92% 125,996.21 130,000.00 -4,003.79 96.92%
0.00 70,074.86 65,000.00 5,074.86 107.81% 70,074.86 65,000.00 5,074.86 107.81%
0.00 11,746.70 15,000.00 -3,253.30 78.31% 11,746.70 15,000.00 -3,253.30 78.31%
0.00 3,133.68 5,000.00 -1,866.32 62.67% 3,133.68 5,000.00 -1,866.32 62.67%
0.00 84,955.24 85,000.00 -44.76 99.95% 84,955.24 85,000.00 -44.76 99.95%
0.00 5,757.94 7,000.00 -1,242.06 82.26% 5,757.94 7,000.00 -1,242.06 82.26%
0.00 1,073.75 5,750.00 -4,676.25 18.67% 1,073.75 5,750.00 -4,676.25 18.67%
0.00 8,590.46 15,800.00 -7,209.54 54.37% 8,590.46 15,800.00 -7,209.54 54.37%
0.00 3,723.75 4,750.00 -1,026.25 78.4% 3,723.75 4,750.00 -1,026.25 78.4%
0.00 9,242.19 12,000.00 -2,757.81 77.02% 9,242.19 12,000.00 -2,757.81 77.02%
0.00 110.00 3,000.00 -2,890.00 3.67% 110.00 3,000.00 -2,890.00 3.67%
0.00 28,498.09 48,300.00 -19,801.91 59.0% 28,498.09 48,300.00 -19,801.91 59.0%
588,092.06 755,458.00 -167,365.94 77.85% 0.00 588,092.06 755,458.00 -167,365.94 77.85%
17,021.17 30,000.00 -12,978.83 56.74% 0.00 17,021.17 30,000.00 -12,978.83 56.74%
Item #3b

Page 3



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (Unaudited)
Budget vs. Actuals  July 2021 - June 2022

Fisheries Operations TOTAL
$ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under)
Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget
4280 - Fixed Capital 38,572.28 50,000.00 -11,427.72 77.15% 0.00 38,572.28 50,000.00 -11,427.72 77.15%
4290 - Miscellaneous 7.53 2,500.00 -2,492.47 0.3% 0.00 7.53 2,500.00 -2,492.47 0.3%
Total 4200 - VEHICLES & EQUIP - FISHERIES 55,600.98 82,500.00 -26,899.02 67.4% 0.00 55,600.98 82,500.00 -26,899.02 67.4%
4220 - CONTRACT LABOR - FISHERIES
4221 - Meters & Valves 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
4222 - Fish Projects Maintenance 6,075.54 16,100.00 -10,024.46 37.74% 0.00 6,075.54 16,100.00 -10,024.46 37.74%
Total 4220 - CONTRACT LABOR - FISHERIES 6,075.54 19,100.00 -13,024.46 31.81% 0.00 6,075.54 19,100.00 -13,024.46 31.81%
4300 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES - FISHERIES
4390 - Miscellaneous 2,272.70 7,000.00 -4,727.30 32.47% 0.00 2,272.70 7,000.00 -4,727.30 32.47%
Total 4300 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES - FISHERIES 2,272.70 7,000.00 -4,727.30 32.47% 0.00 2,272.70 7,000.00 -4,727.30 32.47%
4500 - OTHER EXPENSES - FISHERIES
4502 - Uniforms 3,735.31 3,500.00 235.31 106.72% 0.00 3,735.31 3,500.00 235.31 106.72%
Total 4500 - OTHER EXPENSES - FISHERIES 3,735.31 3,500.00 235.31 106.72% 0.00 3,735.31 3,500.00 235.31 106.72%
4999 - GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
5000 - Director Fees 0.00 6,802.90 12,400.00 -5,597.10 54.86% 6,802.90 12,400.00 -5,597.10 54.86%
5001 - Director Mileage 0.00 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0% 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%
5100 - Legal 0.00 34,143.70 75,000.00 -40,856.30 45.53% 34,143.70 75,000.00 -40,856.30 45.53%
5101 - Audit 0.00 14,237.61 22,750.00 -8,512.39 62.58% 14,237.61 22,750.00 -8,512.39 62.58%
5150 - Unemployment Tax 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
5200 - Liability Insurance 0.00 22,679.58 33,326.00 -10,646.42 68.05% 22,679.58 33,326.00 -10,646.42 68.05%
5310 - Postage/Office Exp 0.00 5,460.72 6,000.00 -539.28 91.01% 5,460.72 6,000.00 -539.28 91.01%
5311 - Office Equip/Leases 0.00 6,561.42 13,440.00 -6,878.58 48.82% 6,561.42 13,440.00 -6,878.58 48.82%
5312 - Misc Admin Expenses 0.00 11,337.53 14,000.00 -2,662.47 80.98% 11,337.53 14,000.00 -2,662.47 80.98%
5313 - Communications 0.00 8,040.34 6,500.00 1,540.34 123.7% 8,040.34 6,500.00 1,540.34 123.7%
5314 - Utilities 0.00 6,426.56 9,737.00 -3,310.44 66.0% 6,426.56 9,737.00 -3,310.44 66.0%
5315 - Membership Dues 0.00 10,947.75 9,700.00 1,247.75 112.86% 10,947.75 9,700.00 1,247.75 112.86%
5316 - Admin Fixed Assets 0.00 2,191.32 5,000.00 -2,808.68 43.83% 2,191.32 5,000.00 -2,808.68 43.83%
5318 - Computer Consultant 0.00 21,891.61 16,500.00 5,391.61 132.68% 21,891.61 16,500.00 5,391.61 132.68%
5325 - Emp Training/Subscriptions 0.00 164.53 2,000.00 -1,835.47 8.23% 164.53 2,000.00 -1,835.47 8.23%
5330 - Admin Travel/Conferences 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0% 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
5331 - Public Information 0.00 2,048.76 3,500.00 -1,451.24 58.54% 2,048.76 3,500.00 -1,451.24 58.54%
Total 4999 - GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 0.00 152,934.33 237,453.00 -84,518.67 64.41% 152,934.33 237,453.00 -84,518.67 64.41%
5299 - ADMIN LABOR 0.00 480,756.47 620,531.00 -139,774.53 77.48% 480,756.47 620,531.00 -139,774.53 77.48%
5400 - GENERAL & ADMIN - FISHERIES
5407 - Legal - FD 6,796.50 25,000.00 -18,203.50 27.19% 0.00 6,796.50 25,000.00 -18,203.50 27.19%
5410 - Postage / Office Supplies 3,071.02 4,000.00 -928.98 76.78% 0.00 3,071.02 4,000.00 -928.98 76.78%
5411 - Office Equipment / Leases 3,533.06 8,533.00 -4,999.94 41.41% 0.00 3,533.06 8,533.00 -4,999.94 41.41%
5412 - Misc. Admin Expense 4,568.79 7,500.00 -2,931.21 60.92% 0.00 4,568.79 7,500.00 -2,931.21 60.92%
5413 - Communications 4,329.40 4,455.00 -125.60 97.18% 0.00 4,329.40 4,455.00 -125.60 97.18%
5414 - Utilities 3,462.51 5,243.00 -1,780.49 66.04% 0.00 3,462.51 5,243.00 -1,780.49 66.04%
5415 - Membership Dues 6,750.25 6,200.00 550.25 108.88% 0.00 6,750.25 6,200.00 550.25 108.88%
5416 - Admin Fixed Assets 3,072.03 3,000.00 72.03 102.4% 0.00 3,072.03 3,000.00 72.03 102.4%
5418 - Computer Consultant 11,787.79 9,000.00 2,787.79 130.98% 0.00 11,787.79 9,000.00 2,787.79 130.98%
5425 - Employee Education/Subscription 250.00 2,500.00 -2,250.00 10.0% 0.00 250.00 2,500.00 -2,250.00 10.0%
2022-04 Rev & Exp Stmt.xlsx [tem #3b

Page 4



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (Unaudited)
Budget vs. Actuals  July 2021 - June 2022

5426 -
5427 -
5430 -
5431 -
5441 - Audit
5443 - Liab & Property Ins
Total 5400 - GENERAL & ADMIN - FISHERIES
5499 - ADMIN LABOR-FISHERIES
5510 - Integrated Reg. Water Mgt Plan
6000 - SPECIAL PROJECTS
6062 - SCADA
6090 - COMB Office Building
6096 - SCC Structure Rehabilitation
6096-3 - Repair Ortega Outlet Pipeline
6096 - SCC Structure Rehabilitation - Other

Director Fees
Director Mileage
Travel

Public Information

Total 6096 - SCC Structure Rehabilitation
6097 -
6100 -
6105 -
6120 -
6136 -
6138 - Cachuma Watershed Mgmt Study
Total 6000 - SPECIAL PROJECTS
6200 - FISHERIES ACTIVITIES
6201 - FMP Implementation
6202 - GIS and Mapping
6205 - USGS Stream Gauge Program
6207 - Oak Tree Restoration Program
Total 6200 - FISHERIES ACTIVITIES
6300 - HABITAT ENHANCEMENT

GIS and Mapping

Watershed Sanitary Survey
ROW Management Program
Lake Cachuma Secured Pipeline

SCC Isolation Valve Evaluation

6303 - Tributary Projects Support
Total 6300 - HABITAT ENHANCEMENT
7007 - INTEREST EXPENSE-EPFP

Total Expense

Net Surplus / Deficit

2022-04 Rev & Exp Stmt.xIsx

Fisheries Operations TOTAL
$ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under) $ Over / (Under)
Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget Jul '21 - Apr 22 Budget Budget % of Budget
3,663.10 6,700.00 -3,036.90 54.67% 0.00 3,663.10 6,700.00 -3,036.90 54.67%
0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%
0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
1,103.18 1,500.00 -396.82 73.55% 0.00 1,103.18 1,500.00 -396.82 73.55%
7,666.39 12,250.00 -4,583.61 62.58% 0.00 7,666.39 12,250.00 -4,583.61 62.58%
12,212.08 17,745.00 -5,532.92 68.82% 0.00 12,212.08 17,745.00 -5,532.92 68.82%
72,266.10 116,426.00 -44,159.90 62.07% 0.00 72,266.10 116,426.00 -44,159.90 62.07%
195,850.86 258,029.00 -62,178.14 75.9% 0.00 195,850.86 258,029.00 -62,178.14 75.9%
0.00 1,211.76 5,000.00 -3,788.24 24.24% 1,211.76 5,000.00 -3,788.24 24.24%
0.00 18,585.89 150,000.00 -131,414.11 12.39% 18,585.89 150,000.00 -131,414.11 12.39%
0.00 190,249.46 216,000.00 -25,750.54 88.08% 190,249.46 216,000.00 -25,750.54 88.08%
0.00 60,275.10 60,275.10 0.00 60,275.10 100.0%
0.00 125,248.74 390,000.00 -264,751.26 32.12% 125,248.74 390,000.00 -264,751.26 32.12%
0.00 185,523.84 390,000.00 -204,476.16 47.57% 185,523.84 390,000.00 -204,476.16 47.57%
0.00 5,625.00 10,000.00 -4,375.00 56.25% 5,625.00 10,000.00 -4,375.00 56.25%
0.00 16,829.62 12,050.00 4,779.62 139.67% 16,829.62 12,050.00 4,779.62 139.67%
0.00 18,925.00 20,000.00 -1,075.00 94.63% 18,925.00 20,000.00 -1,075.00 94.63%
0.00 39,773.00 352,000.00 -312,227.00 11.3% 39,773.00 352,000.00 -312,227.00 11.3%
0.00 254,458.59 400,000.00 -145,541.41 63.62% 254,458.59 400,000.00 -145,541.41 63.62%
0.00 2,234.01 50,000.00 -47,765.99 4.47% 2,234.01 50,000.00 -47,765.99 4.47%
0.00 732,204.41 1,600,050.00 -867,845.59 45.76% 732,204.41 1,600,050.00 -867,845.59 45.76%
1,359.75 35,000.00 -33,640.25 3.89% 0.00 1,359.75 35,000.00 -33,640.25 3.89%
3,870.00 10,000.00 -6,130.00 38.7% 0.00 3,870.00 10,000.00 -6,130.00 38.7%
67,040.00 105,000.00 -37,960.00 63.85% 0.00 67,040.00 105,000.00 -37,960.00 63.85%
16,500.42 25,000.00 -8,499.58 66.0% 0.00 16,500.42 25,000.00 -8,499.58 66.0%
88,770.17 175,000.00 -86,229.83 50.73% 0.00 88,770.17 175,000.00 -86,229.83 50.73%
0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
0.00 115.47 0.00 115.47 100.0% 115.47 0.00 115.47 100.0%
$ 1,012,663.72 $ 1,427,013.00 $ (414,349.28) 70.96% $ 2,364,084.91 $ 3,865,221.00 $ (1,501,136.09) 61.16% $ 3,376,748.63 $ 5,292,234.00 $ (1,915,485.37) 63.81%
$ 377,649.04 $ - $  377,649.04 100.0%  $ 154374841 $ - $ 1,543,748.41 100.0%  $ 1,921,39745 $ - $ 1,921,397.45 100.0%
Item #3b

Page 5






CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: May 23, 2022
Submitted by: | Janet Gingras

SUBJECT: Investment Report — April 30, 2022

RECOMMENDATION

The Board of Directors receive and file the Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board Investment Report
as of April 30, 2022.

DISCUSSION

Cash and investment programs are maintained in accordance with California Government Code Section
53600 et seq. and COMB'’s adopted investment policy. These policies ensure proper control and
safeguards are maintained throughout the financial transaction process. Pursuant to State law, the COMB
Board adopts a detailed investment policy through a Board resolution on an annual basis.

Reports on COMB'’s investment portfolio and cash position are developed and presented to the COMB
Board on a monthly basis, in conformity with the California Government Code.

Unrestricted Cash

Unrestricted cash exceeding current operating needs is invested in LAIF to generate interest income. The
average effective yield rate, as of April 2022, is reported at 0.523%.

See Table 1 below for a summary of balances held in unrestricted accounts.

Table 1
Unrestricted Reserve Funds
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Previous Balance 3/31/2022 S 1,516,358.56
(+) Deposits/Credits 1,202.77
(-) Checks/Withdrawals (400,000.00)
Statement Balance 4/30/2022 S 1,117,561.33

Restricted Cash

The Cachuma Project Warren Act Trust Fund (Trust Fund) and Cachuma Project Master Contract Renewal
Fund (Renewal Fund) are two separate funds that have been established through contracts with the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation). The Trust Fund and the Renewal Fund require annual and five-year
plans which are used to inform the Funds Committee in making decisions on expenditures for betterment
of the Cachuma Project.

Item #3b
Page 6



See Table 2 below for a summary of balances held in restricted accounts.

Restricted Reserve Funds
American Riviera Bank
Renewal Account
Previous Balance 3/31/2022 S 74,033.06
(+) Deposits/Credits -
(-) Checks/Withdrawals -
Statement Balance 4/30/2022 S 74,033.06

American Riviera Bank
Warren Act Trust Fund

Previous Balance 3/31/2022 S 170,715.72

(+) Deposits/Credits 49,966.00

(-) Checks/Withdrawals -

Statement Balance 4/30/2022 S 220,681.72
STATEMENT

The above statement of investment activity for the month of April 2022, complies with legal requirements
for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. | hereby certify that it constitutes a complete and
accurate summary of all American Riviera Bank and LAIF investments of this agency for the period
indicated.

e e

Sec&ffary ' v

Item #3b
Page 7



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Paid Claims
As of April 30, 2022

1050 - General Fund

Date Num Name Memo Amount
04/04/2022 29240 Association of Ca Water Agencies/JPIA May 2022 Health Benefits Premium -25,336.32
04/04/2022 29241 City of Santa-Barbara Trash & Recycling March 2022 -326.22
04/04/2022 29242 Cori Hayman Director Meeting Fees March 2022 -150.00
04/04/2022 29243 ECHO Communications Message Service April 2022 -78.00
04/04/2022 29244 Famcon Pipe & Supply Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Materials (Ops) -270.81
04/04/2022 29245 Flowers & Associates, Inc. SCC Isolation Valve - Engineering Services -16,290.00
04/04/2022 29246 Flowers & Associates, Inc. Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Engineering Services -22,502.75
04/04/2022 29247 FP Mailing Solutions Postage Meter Rental -195.75
04/04/2022 29248 Frontier Communications Phone Service - North Portal -17.56
04/04/2022 29249 Frontier Communications Phone Service - Main Office Land Lines -153.22
04/04/2022 29250 Grainger Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Materials (Ops) -47.84
04/04/2022 29251 Harrison Hardware Supplies (Fisheries) -10.76
04/04/2022 29252 Home Depot Credit Services Supplies (Ops) -192.11
04/04/2022 29253 Houston & Harris Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - CCTV Inspection -3,526.50
04/04/2022 29254 J&C Services Office Cleaning Service - Weekly 2/25/22 - 3/21/22 -680.00
04/04/2022 29255 Kristen Sneddon Director Meeting Fees March 2022 -300.00
04/04/2022 29256 Lauren W. Hanson Director Meeting Fees March 2022 -300.00
04/04/2022 29257 MarBorg Industries Portable Facilities (Ops) -423.76
04/04/2022 29258 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel February 2022 (Ops & Fisheries) -2,622.00
04/04/2022 29259 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Automotive Supplies (Ops) -48.90
04/04/2022 29260 Paychex, Inc. (Payroll) Payroll & Payroll Tax Services 3/4/22, 3/18/22, 4/1/22 -311.35
04/04/2022 29261 Polly Holcombe Director Meeting Fees March 2022 -384.00
04/04/2022 29262 Sherwin Williams Co. Paint Supplies (Ops) -237.10
04/04/2022 29263 Southern California Edison Electricity - Main Office & Outlying Stations -1,188.32
04/04/2022 29264 Staples Business Credit Office Supplies (Ops & Fisheries) -127.19
04/04/2022 29265 The Gas Company Gas - Main Office -85.11
04/04/2022 29266 Underground Service Alert of So. Calif. Ticket Charges & Database Fee -140.35
04/04/2022 29267 Wells Fargo Vendor Fin Serv Copier Leases - Kyocera Taskalfas 6054ci & 3253ci -427.39
04/04/2022 29268 WEX Fleet Universal Fleet Fuel March 2022 -4,425.31
04/04/2022 29269 Zac Gonzalez Landscaping & Tree Care  Landscape Maintenance March 2022 -480.00
04/04/2022 29270 Eurofins Eaton Analytical, LLC Lake Cachuma Water Quality Sampling -775.00
04/04/2022 29271 Cox Communications Santa Barbara Business Internet March 2022 -195.44
04/13/2022 29272 ACWA-Joint Powers Insurance Authority ~ Workers Compensation Program 1/1/22 - 3/31/22 -14,234.37
04/13/2022 29273 All Around Landscape Supply Supplies (Ops) -78.49
04/13/2022 29274 AT&T Long Distance Service 2/28-3/27/22 -35.75
04/13/2022 29275 Coastal Copy, LP Copier Maintenance - Kyocera Taskalfas 3253ci & 6054ci -280.08
04/13/2022 29276 Cox Communications Santa Barbara Business Internet April 2022 -195.44
04/13/2022 29277 Famcon Pipe & Supply Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Materials (Ops) -504.08
04/13/2022 29278 Federal Express Shipping (Ops) -215.90
04/13/2022 29279 Grainger Materials (Ops) -244.96
04/13/2022 29280 Impulse Advanced Communications Phone Service - Main Office -858.13
04/13/2022 29281 Jim Vreeland Ford 2003 Ford F-150 Repair (Fisheries) -834.70
04/13/2022 29282 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Automotive Supplies (Ops) -58.50
04/13/2022 29283 Powell Garage 2015 Chevy Silverado - Major Service -1,244.11
04/13/2022 29284 Premiere Global Services Conference Calls March 2022 -26.62
04/13/2022 29285 Rayne of Santa Barbara Inc April RO Rental -32.00
04/13/2022 29286 Sansum Clinic-Occupational Medicine Pre-Employment Physical (Fisheries) -339.00
04/13/2022 29293 SAS Institute, Inc. GIS & Mapping - JMP Software Renewal 5/31/22 - 5/30/23 -1,020.00
04/13/2022 29287 Smardan-Hatcher Co. Supplies (Ops) -10.89
04/13/2022 29288 VOID Void 0.00
04/13/2022 29289 Turenchalk Network Services, Inc. Network Support March 2022 (Ops & Fisheries) -3,960.20
04/13/2022 29290 Verizon Wireless Cellular Service - SCADA USBs (Ops) -38.01
04/13/2022 29291 Verizon Wireless Cellular Service - Wireless Modems (Ops) -304.38
04/13/2022 29292 Verizon Wireless Operations Cell Phones, iPads -380.59
04/13/2022 29293 SAS Institute, Inc. GIS & Mapping - JMP Software Renewal 5/31/22-5/30/23 -1,020.00
04/19/2022 29304 American Riviera Bank - Card Service Website Hosting, Air Purifiers, Acrobat Team, Towing, Supplies (Ops & Fisheries) -3,367.41
04/19/2022 29295 Federal Express Shipping (Ops) -4.09
04/19/2022 29296 Grainger Personal Protection Equipment (Ops) -210.28
04/19/2022 29297 Graybar Electric Company, Inc. Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Materials (Ops) -280.21
04/19/2022 29298 Instrument & Valve Services Company Calibration of Equipment -1,780.00
04/19/2022 29299 J&C Services Office Cleaning Service - Weekly 3/25/22 - 4/15/22 -680.00
04/19/2022 29300 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel March 2022 (Ops & Fisheries) -2,783.00

Item #3c¢

2022-04 Paid Claims FY 2021-22.xIsx

Page 1



TOTAL

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Paid Claims
As of April 30, 2022

Date Num Name Memo Amount
04/19/2022 29301 Sparkletts Operations Safety -101.78
04/19/2022 29302 Sun Coast Rentals Equipment Rental (Ops) -363.44
04/19/2022 29303 United States Geological Survey USGS Quarterly Joint Funding Agreement 1/1/22-3/31/22 -22,565.00
04/13/2022 29294 Tierra Contracting, Inc. La Mirada Isolation Valve - Construction Services -175,987.50
04/26/2022 29305 Cushman Contracting Corp. EPFP Pumping System - Pay Req #96 -3,500.00
04/26/2022 29306 Earth Systems Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Concrete Testing -1,540.00
04/26/2022 29307 Flowers & Associates, Inc. Repair of Ortega Reservoir Outlet Pipeline - Engineering Services -11,869.75
04/26/2022 29308 PG&E Electricity - North Portal & Tecolote Tunnel -795.33
04/26/2022 29309 The Gas Company Gas - Main Office -40.40
04/26/2022 29310 VOID Void 0.00
04/26/2022 29311 Wells Fargo Vendor Fin Serv Copier Lease - Kyocera Taskalfa 3253ci -123.98

Total 1050 - General Fund -334,157.43
~334,157.43
APPROVALS
Item #3c

2022-04 Paid Claims FY 2021-22.xIsx

Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

Administrative Committee Meeting

Tuesday, May 3, 2022
10:00 A.M.

AGENDA

Chair: Director Holcombe
Member: Director Hanson

1. Call to Order

Public Comment (Public may address the Committee on any subject matter within the Committee’s
jurisdiction)

3. Proposed Draft Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget (for information and possible
recommendation)

4, Adjournment

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Public Comment: The public is welcome to attend the meeting via remote access only. A public comment period will be
included at the meeting where any member of the public may address the Committee on any subject within the
Committee's jurisdiction. The total time for this item will be limited by the Chair.

Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in this meeting, please contact Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (COMB) at 687-4011 at least 48
hours prior to the meeting to enable staff to make reasonable arrangements.

[This Agenda was posted at COMB offices, 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA and
Noticed and Delivered in Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the Government Code.]

Item #4
Page 1



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

Operations Committee Meeting

Chair:

Wednesday, May 11, 2022
12:00 P.M.

AGENDA

Director Sneddon

Member: Director Holcombe

Call to Order

Public Comment (Public may address the Committee on any subject matter not on the agenda
and within the Committee’s jurisdiction)

Proposed 3@ Amendment to the 2021-2025 Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP) (for
information and possible recommendation)

2021-2025 Infrastructure Improvement Plan — Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping
Facility Secured Pipeline Project (Project) (for information and possible recommendation)
a. Approval of Project Expenditures
b. Award of Construction Contract
c. Approval of Construction Management Support Services Contract
d. Approval of Engineering Design Services During Construction Contract

Adjournment

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Public Comment: The public is welcome to attend and observe the meeting. A public comment period will be
included at the meeting where any member of the public may address the Committee on any subject within the
Committee's jurisdiction. The total time for this item will be limited by the Chair.

Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (COMB) at
687-4011 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to enable staff to make reasonable arrangements.

[This Agenda was posted at COMB offices, 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA and
Noticed and Delivered in Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the Government Code. |

Item #4
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: May 23, 2022
Submitted by: Edward Lyons
Approved by: Janet Gingras

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 748 — Confirmation of Local Emergency — Ratification of Governor
Newsom’s Declared State of Emergency (Health and Safety)

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board of Directors receive an update on the existing state of emergency and local COVID-19 status and
provide direction to staff, as appropriate, including adopting Resolution No. 748 pursuant to the requirements of
AB 361, authorizing remote teleconference meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees pursuant to
Government Code Section 54953(e) (Brown Act).

SUMMARY:

On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency to exist due to the COVID-19
pandemic and its impact on human health and safety. Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 which
allows local agencies to meet virtually rather than in-person while still complying with state open-meeting laws
(e.g., Brown Act), using videoconferencing technology to decrease meeting attendees’ potential exposure to
COVID-19. The pandemic still persists and the declared state of emergency remains in place. COMB has met
successfully and in compliance with the Brown Act using a commercial videoconferencing platform and providing
for public access.

The Executive Order N-29-20 waiver of Brown Act meeting requirements expired on September 30, 2021.
Assembly Bill 361 (Open meetings: state and local agencies: teleconferences) was signed into law on
September 16, 2021 and, effective October 1, 2021, applies to local agencies intending to meet virtually in the
interest of reducing COVID-19 exposure. AB 361 requires public agencies to regularly review and find an
ongoing need to hold public meetings by teleconference. Accordingly, COMB must make the following findings
by majority vote within 30 days of holding a meeting by teleconference for the first time under AB 361, then every
30 days thereafter. The requirements that allow the board to meet virtually are:

a) agovernor-declared state of emergency is in effect;
b) amajority of the Board must vote that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present
imminent risk to the health or safety of attendees.

The COMB Board of Directors has continued to review and consider the ongoing circumstances of the declared
state of emergency since the effective date of Assembly Bill 361 and, based on those circumstances, has
authorized and re-authorized the adoption of resolutions acknowledging the emergency conditions for each 30-
day period effective through May 25, 2022.

To date, Governor Newsom has not rescinded the emergency authorization executive order. He has released
a pandemic exit plan called the SMARTER plan. The SMARTER plan is an acronym for Shots, Masks,
Awareness, Readiness, Testing, Education, and Rx and focuses on the next phase of the pandemic and learning
to live with an endemic. It will continue to emphasize vaccines and boosters as an essential prevention in
spreading the disease.

1 Item #5

Page 1



On September 28, 2021, Santa Barbara County Health Officials issued a social distancing recommendation
related to the passing of AB 361. On February 16, 2022, Santa Barbara County Health Officials released an
extension to continue a social distancing recommendation and continue teleconferencing options for public
meetings. As of last week, the social distancing recommendation is still in place. Covid-19 active cases reported
in Santa Barbara County over the past week (as of May 17t) were about 31% more than the previous week with
hospitalizations up by 25%, fueled by the highly contagious Omicron subvariants.

Last year, in response to the COVID-19 local emergency and global pandemic, staff established operational
protocols and implemented business continuity practices to ensure the safety of our employees and the
community. These protocols and procedures communicated the serious nature of this pandemic and outlined
specific preventative and proactive measures for staff to follow such as heightened hygiene routines and
workplace / social distancing practices. In addition, critical essential functions and designation of key personnel
were defined with necessary situational actions for continuity of operations.

COMB staff is comprised of a small team of fifteen full time employees (and three part time employees) who are
classified as essential critical infrastructure workers according to the State Public Health Officer and Executive
Orders signed by Governor Newsom. If two or three of COMB’s essential workers become affected by an
infectious pandemic disease, nearly twenty percent of our workforce would be displaced from duty. COMB does
not maintain a depth of personnel to counter such an incident.

The COMB established protocols continue to be followed and align with the suggested protocols issued by the
Santa Barbara County Public Health Department and the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) to protect
employees and our community against the risk posed by COVID-19. Alternative work schedules continue to
be implemented to increase work space distancing in order to reduce the chance of exposure of COVID-19
among staff members.

LECAL CONCURRENCE,

Counsel continues to review legislation impacting the return to in-person meetings and will keep staff apprised
as matters evolve.

LIST OF EXHIBITS,

1) Resolution No. 748

Item #5
Page 2



RESOLUTION NO. 748

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
ACKNOWLEDGING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, ACKNOWLEDGING THE
PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM’S
ORDER DATED MARCH 4, 2020 AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
FOR THE PERIOD MAY 23, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 23, 2022 PURSUANT TO
BROWN ACT PROVISIONS

Recitals

WHEREAS, the Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (“COMB?”) is a joint powers
authority and public entity, organized and existing in the County of Santa Barbara in accordance with
Government Code Section 6500 et seq., and operating pursuant to the 1996 Amended and Restated
Agreement for the Establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and Maintain the Cachuma Project
- Cachuma Operation And Maintenance Board, dated May 23, 1996 (“Amended and Restated
Agreement”), as amended by an Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement made effective
September 16, 2003, and a Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement made
effective November 20, 2018 (collectively the “Joint Powers Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Member Agencies of COMB are the Goleta Water District, the City of Santa
Barbara, the Montecito Water District, and the Carpinteria Valley Water District; and

WHEREAS, COMB operates and maintains Cachuma Project facilities pursuant to a Transfer
of Operation and Maintenance Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation; and

WHEREAS, COMB is committed to preserving and nurturing public access and participation
in meetings of the Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, all meetings of the COMB Governing Board are open and public, as required
by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code sections 54950 — 54963)(“Brown Act”), so that any
member of the public may attend, participate and watch COMB’s governing body conduct its
business; and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence
of certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the State caused by conditions as described
in Government Code section 8558; and

Item #5

Exhibit #1

Page 1



WHEREAS, it is further required that State or local officials have imposed or recommended
measures to promote social distancing, or, the governing body determines that meeting in person
would present risks to the health and safety of attendees; and

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency
to exist in California due to the threat of COVID-19; despite sustained efforts, the virus, and its
variants, continues to spread and has impacted nearly all sectors of California; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the declared emergency, the COMB Governing Board does
hereby find that meeting in person would pose risks to the health or safety of attendees; and

WHEREAS, the COMB Governing Board does hereby find that COMB shall continue to
conduct its meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code
section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall
comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to meetings as prescribed in paragraph
(2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, all meeting agendas, meeting dates, times and manner in which the public may
participate in the public meetings of COMB and offer public comment by telephone or internet-based
services options, including video conference, are posted on the COMB website and physically within
COMB’s jurisdictional boundaries.

WHEREAS, the COMB Governing Board adopted virtual meeting protocols on April 9,
2020, which includes options for public participation.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the COMB Governing Board, as
follows:

1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into
this Resolution by this reference.

2. Acknowledgment of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The
Governing Board hereby acknowledges the Governor of the State of California’s
Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4,
2020.

3. Risks to Health and Safety of Attendees. The Governing Board hereby determines
that meeting in person would present risks to the health and safety of attendees.

4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. COMB staff are hereby authorized and directed
to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution
including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government
Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

Item #5

Exhibit #1

Page 2



5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect on May 23, 2022, and
shall be effective until the earlier of (i) June 23, 2022, or such time the Governing
Board adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section
54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of COMB may
continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b)
of section 54953.

ADOPTED by the COMB Governing Board on May 23, 2022, by the following roll call
votes:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:
APPROVED:
President of the Governing Board
ATTEST:

Secretary of the Governing Board

Item #5

Exhibit #1

Page 3






CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: May 23, 2022

Joel Degner / Elijah

Submitted by: Papen

Approved by: Janet Gingras

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 749 - Proposed 3 Amendment to the 2021-2025 Infrastructure
Improvement Plan (lIP)

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board of Directors receive information on the proposed 3@ amendment to the COMB 2021-2025 Five-Year
Infrastructure Improvement Plan and adopt Resolution No. 749 amending the Plan.

SUMMARY:

Staff, in coordination with COMB Member Agency technical staff, developed a Five-Year Infrastructure
Improvement Plan (lIP) for purposes of planning and forecasting essential capital improvements within the South
Coast Conduit system. The 1st Amendment to the Plan was approved by the Board of Directors in April 2021
(Resolution No. 724) and shifted projects to later years in preparation for extended drought conditions. In addition,
construction costs for the Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project (Project) had
incrementally increased from original estimates based on completed engineering designs and bid solicitation. A
shift in schedule for completion of rehabilitation projects had also impacted the matrix due to limitations for COMB
to perform a shutdown to address previously planned rehabilitation work in the lower reach of the system.

In November 2021, information from Carpinteria Valley Water District (CVWD) on their intent to offset COMB costs
(through a cooperative agreement) associated with the lower reach lateral project (alternative project) resulted in
revising the IIP a second time. The 2" amended COMB 2021-2025 Five-Year IIP budget matrix was amended
and approved by the Board of Directors through Resolution No. 736 in November 2021.

The proposed 3 amendment to the IIP budget matrix is being requested primarily due to additional cost increases
(solicited through a formal bid process) associated with the construction of the Lake Cachuma Emergency
Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project. Previously, the projected costs outlined in the IIP were estimated
based on best known information prior to full design and bid solicitation. Further, as is now realized within the
current business environment, cost of materials and services have escalated dramatically due to inflation, supply
chain issues, manufacturing lead times, and labor shortages. However, also included in the 3 amendment
budget matrix is the funding award for the Secured Pipeline Project received from the Department of Water
Resources (DWR) Urban and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant Program in the amount of $2,250,000. The overall
costs for the five-year planning horizon have increased by $5,000. Potentially, the planning matrix may decrease
by $2,057,000 due to the incorporation of possible funding offsets including an infrastructure loan applied for
through Reclamation and grant funding applied for through the IRWM program.

The following two tables display the estimated costs associated with the 24 amendment to the 2021-2025 IIP
planning matrix and the proposed 3 amendment to the 2021-2025 IIP planning matrix.

Item #6
Page 1



2nd Amendment IIP (2021 - 2025)
Board Approved November 2021

Project ID

Project Name

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

5-yr Total

1 |2012-1-A | SCC AVAR Valve Replacement/Relocation S 90,000 $ 190,000 $ - 5 - S 40,000| S 320,000
2004-2-1 SCC Blow-Off Nozzle/Valve Replacement S 90,000 $ 200,000] S - S - S 120,000| S 410,000
5 2004-2-B | Rehabilitate Lateral Structures (LIVR) S 85,000 $ 450,000 S 550,000 | $ - S - $ 1,085,000
2014-C-61 | SCADA Upgrades S 150,000 $ 150,000] S - S - S - S 300,000
2019-C-1 | Lake Cachuma EPF Pump Station (if required) S - S - $ 1,600,000 | $ 1,475,000 | S - $ 3,075,000
2018-C-1 | Lake Cachuma EPF Secured Pipeline Project $ 152,000 S 352,000] S 2,400,000 | $ - S - S 2,904,000
- 2019-C-2 | Modular Office Building Replacement $ 175,000] S 216,000 $ - S - S - S 391,000
’g’ 2018-C-2 | SCCIn-Line Isolation Valves S - S 400,000 $ 500,000 $ - S - S 900,000
= 3 | 2019-C-3 | Lake Cachuma Water Quality and Evaporation Buoy S - S - S - $ - S - S -
2013-C-1 | North Portal Jet Flow Control Valve Replacement S - S - S - S - S - S -
2019-C-4 | Critical Control Valve Replacement S - S - S - S - S - S -
2013-C-1 | Meter Replacement Program S - S - S - S - S - S -
2007-2-B | Sheffield Tunnel Evaluation and Repair S - S - S - S - S - S -
4 2013-2-C | Lauro Reservoir Intake Assessment and Repair S = S = S = S ° S = S -
2016-C-1 | North Portal Intake Tower Seismic Assessment S - S - S - S - S - S -
1999-2-A | Tecolote Tunnel Concrete Deterioration Investigation | $ - S - S - S - S - S -
Subtotal| $ 742,000 | $ 1,958,000 | $ 5,050,000 | $ 1,475,000 $ 160,000 | $ 9,385,000
Grant Funding| $ (750,000) $  (750,000)
Actual / Proposed CVWD Fundinél $  (a0,000)| $ (450,000)| $ (550,000) $ (1,040,000)
Total] $ 702,000 | $ 1,508,000 | $ 3,750,000 | $ 1,475,000 $ 160,000 | $ 7,595,000
Proposed 3rd Amendment IIP (2021 - 2025)
Project ID Project Name 2020-21 5-yr Total Variances
] 1 |2012-1-A | SCC AVAR Valve Replacement/Relocation S 90,000 | $ - S 220,000| $ - S - $ 310,000 | $ (10,000)
2004-2-1 SCC Blow-Off Nozzle/Valve Replacement S 90,000 | $ - $ 220,000 S - S - $ 310,000 | S (100,000)
Ortega Emergency Repair S 264,751 S 264,751 | S 264,751
P Carp Resv. / Toro Cyn rehab / Emergency repairs S 125,249 $ 125249 | $ 125,249
2004-2-B | Rehabilitate Lateral Structures (LIVR) S 85,000 $ 450,000] $ 550,000| $ - S - $ 1,085,000 | $ -
2014-C-61 | SCADA Upgrades $ 150,000] $ 150,000] $ - S ) - |$ 300000]|$ -
2019-C-1 | Lake Cachuma EPF Pump Station (if required) S - S - S - $ 2,000,000 | $ 1,250,000 | $ 3,250,000 | $ 175,000
2018-C-1 | Lake Cachuma EPF Secured Pipeline Project S 152,000 $ 152,000 $ 4,400,000 | $ - S - $ 4,704,000 | $ 1,800,000
.‘E 2019-C-2 | Modular Office Building Replacement $ 175000] $ 216,000] $ - S - S - $ 391,000 | $ -
§ 2018-C-2 | SCCIn-Line Isolation Valves S - S 400,000] $ 500,000 S - S 900,000 | $ -
3 | 2019-C-3 | Lake Cachuma Water Quality and Evaporation Buoy S - S - S - S - S - S - S -
2013-C-1 | North Portal Jet Flow Control Valve Replacement S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
2019-C-4 | Critical Control Valve Replacement S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
2013-C-1 | Meter Replacement Program S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
2007-2-B | Sheffield Tunnel Evaluation and Repair S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
4 2013-2-C | Lauro Reservoir Intake Assessment and Repair S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
2016-C-1 | North Portal Intake Tower Seismic Assessment S - S - S - S - S -1s - S -
1999-2-A | Tecolote Tunnel Concrete Deterioration Investigation | $ - S - S - S - S -1 - S -
Subtotal| $ 742,000 | $ 1,758,000 | $ 5,890,000 | $ 2,000,000 | $ 1,250,000 | $11,640,000 | $ 2,255,000
DWR Urban and Multi-benefit Grant Funding| $(2,250,000) $ (2,250,000)| S(2,250,000)
USBR Grant Funding-l $ (750,000) $ (750,000)| S -
Actual / Proposed CVWD Fundingl $  (40,000)| $ (450,000)] $ (550,000) $ (1,040,000)( $ -
Operating Budget Total| $ 702,000 | $ 1,308,000 I $ 2,340,000 | $ 2,000,000 | $ 1,250,000 $ 7,600,000 | $ 5,000
2 Item #6

Page 2



The proposed revised matrix is presented with notable changes including:

Project Explanation Change

SCC AVAR/BO An overall decrease in 5 year planning costs due to a slight increase ($110,000)

Rehab Project in projected costs and the delay of projected maintenance costs.

Ortega Emergency | Unexpected costs to repair the Ortega Reservoir outflow pipeline, $390,000

Repair / Carp Carpinteria Reservoir replacement valves and stem guide

Reservaoir / replacements / Summerland County yard rehabilitation and

Summerland rehab | emergency leak repair.

Lake Cachuma An increase in cost estimates due to inflationary factors. $175,000

EPF Pump Station

Lake Cachuma An increase in cost estimates due to inflationary factors. $1,800,000

EPF Secured

Pipeline Project

Funding Offsets Awarded Grant Funding from DWR for Secured Pipeline Project ($2,250,000)
Overall 5-Year Increase $5,000

The proposed third amendment to the IIP does not constitute approval for any project not previously approved
and authorized by the Board. All projects will be submitted to the appropriate Committee and Board of Directors
for approval prior to design and construction.

Project descriptions have not changed since the 2" amendment to the IIP was approved by the Board of Directors.
However, costs have been updated on applicable projects as shown in the attached (Exhibit 2) project description
excerpts.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The 2021-2025 2" amendment to the IIP adopted by the Board in November 2021 included a net cost of
$7,595,000 over the five-year planning horizon. The proposed revised cost matrix for the 3" amendment has
increased by $5,000 for the five-year planning horizon as explained in the table above. If potential funding offsets
are realized, the revised cost matrix for the five-year planning horizon will decrease by $2,057,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

All environmental compliance measures required for each project contained within the 1P will be satisfied prior to
project implementation.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

Resolution No. 749 has been reviewed by Legal Counsel.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Operations Committee received information on the proposed 3@ amendment to the COMB 2021-2025 Five-
Year Infrastructure Improvement Plan and forwards the amendment to the Board of Directors to approve and
adopt Resolution No. 749 amending the Plan.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1) Resolution No. 749
2) COMB 2021-2025 Infrastructure Improvement Plan Project Description Excerpts

Item #6

Page 3






RESOLUTION NO. 749

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
ADOPTING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO
THE COMB 2021-2025 INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (“COMB”) is a joint powers
authority and public entity, organized and existing in the County of Santa Barbara in accordance
with Government Code Section 6500 et seq., and operating pursuant to the 1996 Amended and
Restated Agreement for the Establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and Maintain the
Cachuma Project - Cachuma Operation And Maintenance Board, dated May 23, 1996 (“Amended
and Restated Agreement”), as amended by an Amendment to the Amended and Restated
Agreement made effective September 16, 2003, and a Second Amendment to the Amended and
Restated Agreement made effective November 20, 2018 (collectively the “Joint Powers
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Member Agencies of COMB are the Goleta Water District, the City of
Santa Barbara, the Montecito Water District, and the Carpinteria Valley Water District; and

WHEREAS, COMB operates and maintains Cachuma Project facilities pursuant to a
Transfer of Operation and Maintenance Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation,
including the North Portal Intake Tower, the Tecolote Tunnel, the South Coast Conduit, the
Sheffield Tunnel, four regulating reservoirs, flow control valves, meters, instrumentation at control
stations, turnouts and appurtenant structures along the entire system; and

WHEREAS, the Five-Year 2021-2025 Infrastructure Improvement Plan (“11P"), which
contemplates certain projects, was initially adopted by the COMB Governing Board in February
2020, then subsequently amended in April 2021 ("First Amendment”) and November 2021
(“Second Amendment”); and

WHEREAS, each year, in conjunction with preparation of COMB's annual Operating
Budget, the Governing Board reviews the upcoming infrastructure needs and related projects for
COMB based on current conditions and priorities; and

WHEREAS, more detailed cost/benefit information, including potential funding offsets,
is now available for certain infrastructure improvement projects; and

WHEREAS, since the initial adoption of the IIP and adoption of the First and Second
Amendments, project budgets and scheduling adjustments are necessary primarily due to declared
drought conditions, inflationary pressures, supply chain issues, shutdown limitations, results of
completed engineering evaluations and potential funding offsets; and

WHEREAS, a third amendment to the IIP is necessary and will facilitate the decision-
making process for allocation of resources to help ensure the delivery of quality, reliable water to
the COMB Member Agencies ("Third Amendment"); and

1

Item #6

Exhibit #1

Page 1



WHEREAS, the proposed Third Amendment to the IIP is presented to the Governing
Board with a recommendation to approve and adopt that amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
COMB AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Governing Board finds and determines that the facts set forth in the above recitals
and in the documents referenced herein are true and correct.

2. The Governing Board approves the May 2022 Third Amendment to the 2021-2025
Infrastructure Improvement Plan, as set forth in the accompanying staff memorandum and Exhibit
2 of the memorandum.

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board, this 23™ day of May 2022, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:
Nayes:
Absent/Abstain:
APPROVED:
President of the Governing Board
ATTEST:

Secretary of the Governing Board

Item #6

Exhibit #1

Page 2



APPENDIX A: ITP PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS
Updated May 2022

Item #6
Exhibit #2
Page 1

COMB 2021-2025 IIP Project Descriptions



Background

Combination air vacuum air release valves (AVARs) are located at high
points along the pipeline and act to automatically expel air and relieve
vacuum accumulation in pipes. If air is not adequately expelled, air
pockets can constrict flows. If the vacuum is not relieved, serious damage
or collapse of the pipeline can occur. If AVAR vaults become flooded or if
a negative pressure is experienced within the pipeline, the AVAR valves
could allow contaminated water to enter the pipeline. It is now required
to install these valves above grade, where flooding is less likely. COMB
has been upgrading the AVAR valves in the system such that all are above
grade. The AVAR valve structures consist of a manhole cover, riser pipe,
valve, and AVAR valve. Over time, the original valves, riser, and manhole
covers have also been corroded and pose an operational risk.

Need

There are twenty-six AVARs on the Lower Reach of the SCC. Most AVAR
structures were rehabilitated from 2018 to 2021. There are two
remaining AVAR valve structures in Highway 192 that need
rehabilitation as they pose an operational risk and/or do not meet
Section 64576 of Titles 17 and 22 California Code of Regulations, which
requires “each new air-release, air vacuum, or combination valve, and
any such valve installed to replace an existing valve shall be: (a) installed
such that its vent opening is above grade.” In addition, three air vents
were partially rehabilitated and require replacement of the valve and
riser pipe when a coordinated shutdown can occur. The consequence of
not completing this project may be major facility failure in multiple
locations and potential water contamination.

Description

Replace and relocate to above ground AVARs, and replace riser pipes in
the Lower Reach. Consistent with other AVAR replacements, manhole
covers, valves, risers, laterals would be replaced at the same time. The
project would require coordination with impacted Member Agencies
during the required shutdown of the SCC. For efficiency and to minimize
cost, phases of this project will be performed concurrently with similar
phases of the South Coast Conduit Blow-0ff Nozzle /Valve Replacement.
Project implementation will occur over time and during low water
demand months to reduce the impact of system shutdown.

PRIORITY CATEGORY
1. Regulatory or Legal Requirement

ESTIMATED COST
$310,000
Fiscal Year Phase Cost ‘

2020-21 Toro Cyn to Carp HS $90,000

2022-23 Toro Cyn to Carp HS $220,000

This project has been identified by the USBR as a
Category 1 recommendation.

COMB 2021-2025 IIP Project Descriptions

Item #6
Exhibit #2
Page 2



Background

Blow-off structures exist on all low points of a water distribution
system. The components included in these structures include
access-hole covers, blow-off nozzles, a gate valve and blow-off
piping. There are a total of sixty-five blow-off structures in South
Coast Conduit system.

Need

The existing blow-off components are in need or rehabilitation
due to extensive corrosion. The dependability of these
components is necessary to allow the system to be dewatered
for maintenance and response to an emergency break in the
pipe. Blow-off valves and piping have been replaced in the Upper
Reach and 21 blow-off nozzles/valves have been replaced in the
Lower Reach. Five blow-off nozzles in the Montecito and
Carpinteria areas are in need of replacement. The original
nozzles and valves are in need of replacement because of
corrosion. The consequence of not completing this project could
result in a major facility failure in multiple locations and
potential risk of water contamination.

Description

The project consists of replacing the man hole covers, blow-off
nozzles, gate valves, upper spools, and discharge piping within
the Lower Reaches of the SCC. The project would be completed
in conjunction with the AVAR valve replacement and relocation
project and coordinated with the affected Member Agencies
during the required system shutdown. The design for this
project is complete. Six scheduled shutdowns remain to be
completed to replace 15 remaining blow-off nozzles and valves.

PRIORITY CATEGORY
2. Required to Maintain Level of
Service

ESTIMATED COST

$310,000
Fiscal Year Phase Cost
2020-21 Toro Cyn to Carp HS $90,000
2022-23 Toro Cyn to Carp HS $220,000

This project has been identified by the USBR as a Category

2 recommendation.

COMB 2021-2025 IIP Project Descriptions

Item #6
Exhibit #2
Page 3



% Cac

B ¥ | "lhu—'

Background

The proposed Pump Station Project would be required to be
installed when the lake levels are projected to fall below the
intake gates. The pumping facility provides a lifeline delivery of
Cachuma Project water and imported State Water Project (SWP)
water to 200,000 residents on the South Coast of Santa Barbara
County during times of drought.

Need

A pump-system has been installed three times in Lake Cachuma
in 1957, 1990-91, and 2015-2017. In 1990-91 and 2015-17, the
pumps were installed on a floating barge. Key components of the
pumping barge from 2015-2017 EPF are currently being stored
at a storage facility in Paso Robles. A land-based pump system
was installed at Site 1 in 1957.

Description

The floating pump station that is currently in storage consists of
seven electrical pumps with fixed drum fish screens set on
Flexifloat and Quadrafloat system. The pump station is powered
by electricity through a temporary power line connected to
PG&E system. A backup generator would be available on shore
in case there was a power outage.

These costs are based on the installation and operation of the
floating pump system that is currently in storage, under
contract.

PRIORITY CATEGORY
2. Required to Maintain Level of
Service

ESTIMATED COST
$3,250,000% (If required)

Phase Cost
2023-24 Mobilize/Install/Ops $2,000,000

Fiscal Year

2024-25 Mobilize/Install/Ops $1,250,000
*If required, the actual schedule for the Lake Cachuma EPF Pump
Station (2019-C-1) may shift depending on drought severity and

lake levels

Permits are in the process of being renewed for future
redeployment of the EPE (if required) with a secured pipeline

to site 1.

COMB 2021-2025 IIP Project Descriptions

Item #6
Exhibit #2
Page 4



Qe 5o A Dinalan oD

Background

The Secured Pipeline Project - Gate 5 Extension is currently in the
design phase. The North Portal Intake Tower is normally operated as
a gravity flow system. However, when the lake level recedes below the
lowest gates, water is unable to be transported to the South Coast.
Under these conditions, water must be pumped from deeper parts of
the lake to the Intake Tower.

Need

Sedimentation has buried the lowest gate (Gate 5) on the North Portal
Intake Tower. A pumping system is needed when lake levels recede
below the Gate 4 elevation (678’). Without a pipeline and pumping
system, Cachuma Project and State Water Project (SWP) water cannot
be transported to the South Coast, causing a widespread immediate
threat to public health during drought. This project would consist of a
pipeline secured to the lake bottom with a connection at Gate 5, and a
gravity intake with fish screen at an alternate drafting location (Site 1).
Should water quality become poor at the Intake Tower (temp, algae,
turbidity, TOC, etc.), the alternative Site 1 intake could also be utilized.

Water quality data collected by COMB over the last 2 years
demonstrates that water temp, TOC, boron, and sulfate are
consistently lower at depth. Lower water temperatures are associated
with decreased THM formation during treatment and lower
boron/sulfate levels will help Member Agencies meet aquifer storage
and recovery (ASR) injection requirements.

Description

The project would consist of installation of a 36-inch, 3,600° DR-17
HDPE pipeline secured to the lake bottom with concrete pipe weights.
A fish screen installed at the drafting end would allow water deliveries
from deeper portions of the lake for better management of delivered
water quality. In times of drought, the pipeline would be connected to
a pumping system to allow deliveries of water to the Tecolote Tunnel.
The preferred elevation to install the pipeline is at 710’ or less. The
project could be installed during the next drought when the
appropriate lake level is reached for construction (Makai Ocean
Engineering, Inc. 2019).

PRIORITY CATEGORY
3. Addresses Critical Deficiency

ESTIMATED COST

$4,704,000
Fiscal Year Phase Cost
2020-21 Env/Eng $152,000
2021-22 Env/Eng $152,000
2022-23 Construction $4,400,000

*USBR  Drought Resiliency Grant awarded to

COMB in the amount of $750,000 for this project — DWR
Multibenefit Drought Relief Program awarded COMB
$2,250,000 for the project.

Environmental review has been completed and permits
are in the process of being renewed or applied for the
secured pipeline project.

COMB 2021-2025 IIP Project Descriptions

Item #6
Exhibit #2
Page 5






CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: May 23, 2022
Submitted by: | Edward Lyons
Approved by: Janet Gingras

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 750 - COMB Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 750 adopting the COMB Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Annual
Operating Budget.

BACKGROUND:

Each year, the Board of Directors approves the COMB Annual Operating Budget (Budget) for the following
fiscal year, which runs from July 1 through June 30. The Budget provides a framework for effecting policy
directives, executing operational plans, and implementing infrastructure improvement projects necessary
to operate and maintain the Cachuma Project Transferred Project Works. In addition, the Budget
establishes the direction for the near term and, to the extent decisions have continuing implications, it
establishes a long-term course as well. The Budget also supports the work associated with implementation
of the Fish Management Plan and the 2000 Cachuma Project Biological Opinion.

At the beginning of the annual budget planning cycle, COMB staff prepares estimated budget projections
and presents a draft Operating Budget to the General Managers and technical staff of the COMB Member
Agencies. Staff then incorporates any comments received into the proposed operating budget prior to
submission to the COMB Administrative Committee.

On May 3, 2022, the COMB Administrative Committee reviewed the draft Budget and, after providing
comments, forwarded it to the COMB Board for review and consideration. On May 12, 2022, the COMB
Board was provided the proposed draft Budget and an overview of the revenue and cost assumptions
included therein.

SUMMARY:

Presented for review and adoption is the COMB FY 2022-23 Operating Budget. The budget reflects
projected operating expenses for the Operations Division, the Fisheries Division as well as the General and
Administrative expenses. These projected expenditures have been refined through development of
divisional annual work plans, the Board adopted Five-Year (2021-2025) Infrastructure Improvement Plan,
and required implementation activities associated with the 2000 Biological Opinion.

As reflected in Table 1, the COMB Gross Operating Budget for FY 2022-23, excluding offsetting revenues,
is $10.0M as compared to the FY 2021-22 Operating Budget of $5.3M, which reflects an increase of $4.7M
(89.3%).

Item #7
Page 1



Table 1: COMB Operating Budget

COME OPERATING BUDGET

SALARIES & BENEFITS FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 Change ($) | Change (%)
Operations Division $ 1023887 8% 1,090,526 | $ 66,639 6.5%
Fisheries Division 755,458 785,564 | $ 30,106 4.0%
Administration 878,561 905,927 | $ 27,365 3.1%
TOTAL $ 2,657,906 | $ 2,782,016 | $ 124,110 4.7%)

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Operations Division $ 378,300 | $ 470,800 92,500 24.5%
Fisheries Division 112,100 148,600 36,500 32.6%
TOTAL $ 490,400 | $ 619,400 | $ 129,000 26.3%
GENERAL & ADMINIS TRATIVE EXPENSES
Operation Division $ 242,452 | $ 258,702 16,250 6.7%
Fisheries Division 116,426 123,426 7,000 6.0%
TOTAL $ 358,878 | $ 382,128 23,250 6.5%
| Total Operating Budget |s 35071843 3,783,544 | § 276,360 7.9%
| INFRAS TRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT, HABITAT IMPROVEMENT & SPECIAL PROJECTS |
Operations Division
Infrastructure Improvement Projects $ 1,508,000 | $ 5,890,000 4,382,000 290.6%
Special Projects 92,050 160,000 67,950 73.8%
TOTAL 1,600,050 6,050,000 4,449,950 278.1%
Fisheries Division
Habitat Improvement Projects 35,000 28,000 (7,000) -20.0%
Program Support Senices 150,000 157,000 7,000 4.7%
TOTAL 185,000 185,000 | § - 0.0%

| TOTAL GROSS OPERATING BUDGET |s  5,292234]% 10,018,544 [$ 4,726,310 | 89.3%)

| Projected Offsetting Revenues s (353,261)| $ (3.914,016)|

| TOTAL NET OPERATING BUDGET |s  4,938973]$ 6,104,528 | $ 1,165,555 23.6%)

Item #7

Page 2



The following items describe the net change from the previous fiscal year:

Table 2: Change from Previous Year

Amount Description

Salaries and Benefits - An increase of $124K (4.7%) which includes staffing
of fifteen fulltime and two fulltime equivalent (FTE) seasonal employees, a
$124.1K 5.17% COLA adjustment and an increase in the CalPERS Unfunded Liability
obligation. This increase is partially offset by a decrease in premium cost for
retiree health insurance.

Operations and Maintenance Expenses - An increase of 129K (26.3%) which
$129.0K is attributed to the replacement of two fleet vehicles for the Operations and
Fisheries Divisions.

General and Administrative Expenses (excluding administrative salaries) - An
increase of $23K (6.5%) which is attributed to computer consulting and
network service costs as well as a slight increase in communication expense,
membership dues and admin fixed assets.

$23.3K

Infrastructure Improvement Projects and Special Projects - An increase of
$4.4M $4.4M (278.1%) which is attributed to the installation of the Lake Cachuma
Secured Pipeline Project.

$4.7M Net Change

The COMB Net Operating Budget, including offsetting revenues for FY 2022-23, is $6.1M and is compared
to FY 2021-22 of $4.9M, which is an increase of $1.2M (23.6%).

COMB Managed Revenues

In addition to the annual Operating Budget, COMB collects and manages various other assessments
considered as pass-through revenues and charges. COMB has the authority, granted by various
agreements, for administering the provisions, collection and payment of these revenues including the USBR
Entitlement Obligation (USBR Water Rates), the Bradbury and Lauro Safety of Dams (SOD) Repayment
Obligations, and the State Water Resource Control Board Water Rights Fee. COMB is also responsible for
managing various federal, state and local grant revenues, as well as, various restricted trust fund accounts.

For FY 2022-23, the total projected obligation for the Cachuma Project is $8.9M and is compared to the FY
2021-22 total projected obligation of $8.0M as shown in Table 3.

Item #7
Page 3



Table 3: Projected Obligation by Cachuma Project Member Unit

Projected Obligation by Cachuma Project Member Unit - FY 2022-23

SYRWCD

CATEGORY GWD City of SB CVWD MWD ID No. 1 Totals FY 2021-22
COMB Gross Operating Budget $4,049,194 $3,595,684 $1,222,019 $1,151,647 $0 $10,018,544 $5,292,234
USBR Water Rates 797,500 708,180 240,680 226,820 226,820 2,200,000 ’ 1 2,200,000
USBR Deficits - FY 2015-2017 38,549 0 0 0 20,902 59,451’(2) 207,534
Bradbury SOD Act 94,847 84,224 28,624 26,976 26,976 261,647 '(3) 261,647
Cachuma Project Renewal Fund 62,939 55,889 18,994 17,901 0 155,723 220,175
Lauro SOD Act 19,159 17,013 5,782 5,449 0 47,404 '(4) 47,404
SWRCB Water Rights Fee 25,840 22,950 7,800 7,350 6,780 70,720’(5) 66,000
Total Gross Obligation $5,088,028 $4,483,941 $1,523,900 $1,436,142 $281,478  $12,813,489 $8,333,614
Less Offsetting Revenues:

DWR Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant (909,382) (807,531) (274,445) (258,641) 0 (2,250,000) 0

USBR WaterSmart Grant (303,127) (269,177) (91,482) (86,214) 0 (750,000) 0

CVWD Cooperative Agreement Funding (222,293) (197,397) (67,087) (63,223) 0 (550,000) 0

Warren Act Trust Fund (47,810) (42,456) (14,429) (13,598) 0 (118,293) (43,086)

Renewal Fund (62,939) (55,889) (18,994) (17,901) 0 (155,723) (220,175)

County Betterment Fund (36,375) (32,301) (10,978) (10,346) 0 (90,000) (90,000)

Total Offsetting Revenue ($1,581,928)  ($1,404,752) ($477,415) ($449,922) $0  ($3,914,016) ($353,261)
Sub Total Projected Net Obligation $3,506,100 $3,079,190 $1,046,485 $986,220 $281,478 $8,899,473 $7,980,353
Non-Member Agency Obligation (24,250) (21,534) (7,319) (6,897) 60,000 0 ’(6) 0
Total Projected Net Obligation $3,481,850 $3,057,655 $1,039,166 $979,323 $341,478 $8,899,473 $7,980,353
Memo:
FY 2021-22 $3,171,094 $2,652,615 $901,510 $858,177 $396,957 $7,980,353

Increase/Decrease ($) $310,756 $405,041 $137,656 $121,146 ($55,480) $919,120

Increase/Decrease (%) 9.8% 15.3% 15.3% 14.1% (14.0%) 11.5%

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Administrative Committee reviewed the COMB Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and forwards
to the Board with a recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 750 approving the annual operating budget.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1) Resolution No. 750
2) COMB FY 2022-23 Annual Operating Budget

Item #7
Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 750

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD ADOPTING THE
ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

WHEREAS, the Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (“COMB”) is a joint
powers authority and public entity, organized and existing in the County of Santa Barbara in
accordance with Government Code Section 6500 et seq., and operating pursuant to the 1996
Amended and Restated Agreement for the Establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and
Maintain the Cachuma Project - Cachuma Operation And Maintenance Board, dated May 23,
1996 (“Amended and Restated Agreement”), as amended by an Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Agreement made effective September 16, 2003; and as amended by the Second
Amendment to the 1996 Amended and Restated Agreement made effective November 20, 2018
(collectively the “Joint Powers Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Member Agencies of COMB are the Goleta Water District, the City
of Santa Barbara, the Montecito Water District, and Carpinteria VValley Water District; and

WHEREAS, COMB operates and maintains Cachuma Project facilities pursuant to a
Transfer of Operation and Maintenance Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation,
including the South Coast Conduit (“*SCC”) and appurtenances. The SCC is a critical piece of
infrastructure that provides for the conveyance of Cachuma Project water and State Project
water to 250,000 residents on the South Coast of Santa Barbara County; and

WHEREAS, COMB staff developed the Fiscal Year ("FY") 2022-23 Annual Operating
Budget using zero-based budgeting methodology, which unlike traditional incremental
budgeting, employs a detailed examination of expenditures wherein only the necessary budget
amount for each line item is presented for discussion; and

WHEREAS, COMB staff presented the COMB FY 2022-23 Draft Operating Budget
to the General Managers and staff of the Member Agencies for review and incorporated
comments and suggestions prior to being presented to the Administrative Committee for its
review; and

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2022, the COMB Administrative Committee reviewed the FY
2022-23 Draft Operating Budget and, after providing comments, forwarded it to the COMB
Governing Board for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2022, the Governing Board was provided an overview of the
FY 2022-23 Draft Operating Budget, with assurances that it was based on Board priorities,
demonstrates fiscal accountability, and ensures future financial sustainability; and

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2022, the COMB Governing Board was presented the Final
FY 2022-23 Annual Operating Budget, with Board incorporated comments, for approval and
adoption; and

Item #7
Exhibit #1
Page 1



WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of COMB to approve and adopt the COMB FY
2022-23 Annual Operating Budget for sound financial operation of COMB.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
COMB AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Governing Board finds and determines that the facts set forth in the above recitals
and in the documents referenced herein are true and correct.

2. The Governing Board approves and adopts, with consideration of any modifications
made at the time of adoption, the COMB FY 2022-23 Annual Operating Budget ending June
30, 2023.

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board, this 23™ day of May 2022, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstain:
Absent:
APPROVED:
President of the Governing Board
ATTEST:

Secretary of the Governing Board

Item #7
Exhibit #1
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE BOARD

Fiscal Year 2022-23
Annual Operating Budget

A California Joint Powers Authority




This page left blank intentionally

Cover Photo: Carpinteria Reservoir Valve Replacement — December 2021

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 2

























































































































































~ M

SECTION III - BUDGET OVERVIEW




This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 54



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

COMB ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET

Each year, the Board of Directors approves the COMB
Operating Budget for the following fiscal year that runs from

Fiscal Year 2022-23
]uly 1 thl"Ollgh ]une 30. Draft Operating Budget

The development and adoption of an annual budget is based
on the Board’s financial and operational policies. Its purpose
is to maintain fiscal stability by providing a structural balance
between revenues and expenditures and to identify programs
of work COMB has pledged to support. In addition,

the budget provides the financial resources

necessary to achieve or advance management

strategies and goals. It serves as a financial road map

and communication tool describing programs of work,
resource requirements, and functions as a guideline in accomplishing our mission in the
most efficient, fiscally sustainable manner while ensuring maximum value to our Member
Agencies.

The COMB Operating Budget for FY 2022-23 is further detailed in Section V - COMB
Operating Budget (see page 59).

BUDGET DEVELOPMENT

Basis of Budgeting

For budgetary reporting purposes, COMB uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined. “Available” means
the amount of the transaction can be collectible within the current period, or soon enough
thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recognized
in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. Non-cash expense items such as
depreciation expense for fixed assets and accrued paid time off are excluded from the
budget.

COMB operates under one fund for budgetary purposes. However, the Agency’s various
divisions and budget preparation are segregated as follows:

e Operations / Engineering Division

e Fisheries Division

The Administrative Division is included with General and Administrative Expenditures,
which are generally allocated between the Operations (65%) and Fisheries Division (35%).

Page 29

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 55



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

BUDGET DEVELOPMENT

Budget Development

Development of the budget is based on a zero-based budgeting methodology. This
methodology employs a detailed examination of expenditures wherein only the necessary
budget amount for each line item is presented for discussion. This approach addresses
fundamental and prioritized service needs and represents the minimum level of funding
needed for effective operations.

At the beginning of the annual budget
planning cycle, COMB staff prepares
estimated budget projections and presents a
draft Operating Budget to the General
Managers and technical staff of the COMB
Member Agencies. Staff then incorporates
any comments received into the proposed
operating budget prior to submission to the
COMB Administrative Committee. Following
review by the Administrative Committee,
COMB staff then conducts a budget workshop
with the COMB Board, at a public meeting, to
review the draft operating budget, the proposed upcoming infrastructure and habitat
improvement projects, and any revenue and expenditure assumptions and projections
contained therein.

Depending on the quantity or nature of comments received during the budget workshop,
the draft budget may be sent back to committee for further consideration or brought back
to the Board at its next meeting, as revised, for adoption.

Budget Calendar

Table 3.2 on the following page provides the budget process schedule for FY 2022-23.

Page 30

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 56



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

BUDGET DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Table 3.1 - FY 2022-23 Budget Process Schedule

Deliverables Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun

Updates to:

- Infrastructure Improvement Projects

- Habitat Improvement Projects

- Projected COMB Managed Revenues

- Projected General and Administrative Expenditures
- Projected Operating Expenditures

Draft Budget Document Developed X

Draft Budget Internal Review Process X

Member Agency Review Process

Administrative Committee Draft Budget Review

Board Reviews Draft Budget

Update Draft Budget - Prepare Final Budget

Board Adopts Final Operating Budget

BUDGET POLICIES

Budget Approval

The final COMB Operating Budget is approved and adopted by the Board of Directors
through a resolution during a scheduled public meeting. Once adopted by the Board,
management continues to closely monitor and report on revenues and expenditures
throughout the fiscal year to ensure compliance with the budget, as well as the integrity,
transparency and quality of operations.

Balanced Budget

The primary budget objective is to provide the highest possible level of service to COMB’s
stakeholders and members of the public without impairing COMB's financial condition.
COMB will make every effort to keep current expenditures less than current assessments
and revenues. Current expenditures are defined as operating expenses, debt payment and
infrastructure and habitat improvement projects. COMB will endeavor to operate within
the approved budgetary amounts to avoid subsequent assessments to its Member
Agencies.

Page 31

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 57



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

BUDGET POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Outside Funding Sources

COMB staff actively pursues outside funding sources for all infrastructure improvement
projects. Outside funding sources, such as grants, are used to finance only those
improvement projects that are consistent with the Five-Year Infrastructure Improvement
Project Plans and COMB priorities, and whose operating and maintenance costs have been
included in future operating budget forecasts. Board policy requires that all grant
agreements be considered at Committee and be reviewed and approved by the Board prior
to acceptance.

Pass-Through Revenues and Charges

In addition to the annual Operating Budget, COMB collects and manages various other
assessments, which are considered pass-through revenues and charges. COMB has been
granted the authority, by various agreements, for administering the provision, collection
and payment of these revenues including the USBR Entitlement Obligation (USBR Water
Rates), the Bradbury and Lauro Safety of Dams (SOD) Repayment Obligations, and the State
Water Resources Control Board Water Rights Fee. Since these payments are considered
pass-through revenues and charges, they are not recorded as revenue on COMB's financial
statements.

COMB endeavors to provide sufficient information to its Member Agencies regarding the
USBR and other pass-through charges to enable them to gain a full understanding of the

charges.

Budgeted Expenditures

As stated in COMB’s Procurement Policy, the General Manager has the authority to approve
expenditures made for official COMB business up to a maximum of $25,000, provided such
expenditures are within the budget, as adopted by the COMB Board. Purchases of
equipment, services, or supplies exceeding $25,000 are submitted, through the appropriate
Committee, to the Board of Directors for review and approval. This expenditure authority
limitation does not apply to routine, recurring operational expenses already approved
within the annual operating budget, such as salaries, benefits, insurance, legal and IT
services.

Emergency expenditures, as defined in COMB’s Procurement policy, are subject to approval
by the General Manager or designee, who in turn notifies the Board President of actions
taken and brings notification to the full Board within 30 days of the expenditure being
made. In such an event, a determination is made and considered by the Board if a special
assessment is warranted to cover non-budgeted emergency expenditures.

Any capital expenditure or form of indebtedness in excess of one million dollars requires
unanimous consent by the COMB Board through a board resolution.

Page 32

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 58



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

BUDGET POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allocation of General and Administrative Expenses

General and Administrative expenses include costs for support of all administrative
functions of COMB such as: Director fees, legal expenditures, general liability and property
insurance, audit fees, temporary/contract labor, utilities, IT and communications, postage
and office supplies, training, education and subscriptions and miscellaneous expenses.
General and Administrative expenses are generally allocated between Operations Division
(65%) and Fisheries Division (35%).

Budget Adjustments / Augmentations

The budget may be adjusted or augmented throughout the year by Board action to
accommodate an expenditure that was either unanticipated or indeterminable at the time
the annual budget was adopted. This process involves a recommendation by staff to the
appropriate Board committee prior to submission to the Board of Directors for
consideration. A budget adjustment is defined as the process of reallocating budgeted
funds to an alternate account and does not change the overall approved budget amount. A
budget augmentation is defined as an increase to the approved budget and the need for
additional assessments.

The Board considers the recommendation at a public meeting and approves or rejects such
requests by motion and majority vote of the Board. Any budget adjustment or
augmentation that increases the cost of a capital expenditure or form of indebtedness in
excess of one million dollars requires unanimous consent by the COMB Board through a
board resolution.

Member Agency Payment of Assessments

Current operations of COMB are funded by assessment of the Member Agencies, with the
assessments based on the Member Agencies’ Cachuma Project entitlement percentages.
Operating assessments are calculated each year through the Budget process. Member
Agencies are billed at the start of each quarter for their allocable amount.

Section 4.2 of Article IV of the COMB JPA outlines the division of Cachuma Project Costs
among the Member Agencies. Section 4.2 states: “Parties shall divide and pay the
administrative costs, the storage operation and maintenance costs, and the conveyance and
operations and maintenance costs, including the payment of any loans or obligations
incurred by the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board pursuant to the provisions of
Article I, Section 1.3(h) (iv) and Section 1.3 (i), according to their use of the facilities and
their participation in the benefit of the annual yield of the Cachuma Project. Such costs
shall be assessed to the parties upon a schedule approved by the Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board.”

Page 33

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 59



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

BUDGET POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-Member Agency Payment Obligations

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement between COMB and Santa Ynez River Conservation
District, ID No. 1 (ID No. 1), starting in Fiscal Year 2017-18 and going forward, certain
actual expenditures incurred by COMB will be collected from ID No. 1 through an invoice
issued quarterly to it by COMB. In addition, COMB collects payments from ID No. 1 for
continuing pass-through obligations pursuant to the terms of the Separation Agreement,
dated August 31, 2018.

Unexpended Funds

Unexpended funds occur when assessments (revenues) collected from the Member
Agencies through the budget process exceed actual expenditures. Unexpended funds are
identified through the audit process and returned to the Member Agencies using one of
four methods. These methods include: 1) the issuance of checks made payable to each
Member Agency; 2) constructively returning the unexpended funds by reducing future
quarterly assessments; 3) carrying forward unexpended funds for work in process; and/or
4) reducing the projected operating budget for the following fiscal year.

The Board of Directors shall take action annually to approve the methodology for return
once unexpended funds are identified.

Financial Statement Reporting

Division financial statements are provided to each division manager monthly.
Expenditures are reviewed to ensure that actual costs to-date do not exceed the adopted
budget.

Unaudited financial statements, including a statement of paid claims and an investment
report, are received and filed by the Board monthly at a regularly scheduled public
meeting.

On a quarterly basis, the Administrative Manager / Chief Financial Officer (CFO) provides a
fiscal year-to-date financial review of the unaudited interim financial reports to the Board
of Directors, comparing actual expenditures to the budget. Additionally, the General
Manager provides a quarterly report of contracts executed pursuant to COMB’s
Procurement policy.

In compliance with Government Code section 53891 (a), COMB submits its annual Financial
Transaction Report and annual Government Compensation in California to the State
Controller’s office for posting on its public website.

Page 34

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 60



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

STRATEGIC PLANNING

The Planning Process

Strategic planning is a comprehensive and systematic management tool designed to help
organizations assess the current environment, anticipate and respond appropriately to
changes in the environment, envision the future, increase effectiveness, develop
commitment to the organizations’ mission and achieve consensus on strategies and
objectives for achieving that mission. The planning process warrants considerable time
and includes thoughtful consideration on components such as identifying critical issues and
establishing strategic initiatives, developing broad goals to achieve those initiatives,
creating measurable objectives, and ultimately implementing the plan.

At the end of 2019, COMB staff developed six internal strategic initiatives as part of the
annual budget and long term financial planning process. Staff took into consideration the
following elements in its planning efforts:

e COMB's Mission

e Strategic initiatives and goals to accomplish COMB's Mission

 Key objectives to accomplish goals

* Development and prioritization of annual tasks that align with
strategic initiatives

e Implementation

e Monitoring and reporting

Page 35

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 61



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

STRATEGIC PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Our Policy Statement and Mission

COMB is committed to providing its core services while maintaining a balanced approach
to human and environmental needs. Our actions are guided by the COMB mission:

“To provide a reliable source of water to our Member Agencies
in an efficient and cost effective manner
for the betterment of our community.”

Strategic Initiatives

As COMB moves into the next fiscal year, staff is committed to — o~

upholding the core values that have shaped its standard of

excellence. These six initiatives seek to coordinate with existing \ \
COMB plans, policies, programs and action in order to carry out / C \

our mission. /

e [Initiative 1 - Water Supply Reliability

e Initiative 2 - Distribution Facilities Improvement

¢ Initiative 3 - Environmental Stewardship and Public Trust Resources
¢ Initiative 4 - Cost Effectiveness and Value

e [Initiative 5 - Organizational Policies and Financial Responsibilities

e [Initiative 6 - Foster Leadership and Workforce Capabilities

Item #7

Page 36 Exhibit #2
Page 62




Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

STRATEGIC PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Water Supply Reliability

Goal: Sustain a safe, reliable water supply for our Member Agencies by:

Objectives: |
» Protecting and maintaining the water :
conveyance system.

» Analyzing watershed conditions -
watershed stewardship.

» Implementing drought response and
resiliency measures.

» Storing and conveying state water
imports.

» Monitoring / defending against natural and human-made disasters.

Initiative 2 Distribution Facilities Improvements

Goal: Identify, prioritize and implement projects necessary to protect, improve, and
sustain the Cachuma Project conveyance system and appurtenant structures by:

Objectives:

» Continuing infrastructure improvement planning.

» Developing and updating asset
management plan.

» Updating the risk and resiliency plan.

» Improving facilities security and
emergency preparedness plans.

» Continuing technology improvements
toward operation and maintenance
activities.

Item #7

Page 37 Exhibit #2
Page 63




Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

STRATEGIC PLANNING (CONTINUED)

1 EUVGRES  Environmental Stewardship and Public Trust Resources

Goal: Continue to monitor and mitigate for changing climate conditions, develop
and implement strategies to increase sustainability of the steelhead trout
population and improve fish passages along the Santa Ynez River by:

Objectives:

» Implementing the provisions of the 2000 BiOp and
Water Rights (WR) Order 2019-0148.

» Protecting and enhancing steelhead habitats in
accordance with the FMP.

» Adhering to environmental regulatory requirements.

A\

Improving watershed protection.

» Working to mitigate climate crisis effects of COMB
operations.

Cost-Effectiveness and Value

Goal: Maintain and improve the cost effectiveness and value of COMB services to
our Member Agencies by:

Objectives:

» Managing and maintaining infrastructure efficiently.
» Continuing to review and prioritize IIP.

» Investing in system improvements and sustainably
efficient equipment for better, more economical
results and climate change resiliency.

» Enhancing asset management program.

» Leveraging technology to improve system.

Item #7

Page 38 Exhibit #2
Page 64




Section III - Budget and Planning Overview

FY 2022-23

STRATEGIC PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Initiative 5 Organizational Policies and Financial Responsibility

Goal: Operate within approved policies in a productive, transparent and efficient

manner to ensure sound financial stability by:

Objectives:

>

Advancing the development of policies and
procedures in an ever changing legal and
regulatory environment.

Enhancing the annual financial audit
practices and budget document formulation.

Developing short and long term financial
plans.

Adhering to risk transfer practices.

Leveraging advances in technology.

/

B

S

-~

Foster Leadership and Strengthen Workforce Capabilities

Goal: Continue to promote a safe and positive work environment and provide equal
opportunities for employees to use their diverse talents to grow professionally and

prepare for challenges of the future by:

Objectives:

>

Promoting a safe and socially equitable working
environment.

Providing training and continuing education.

Advancing licensing and certification for staff
members.

Investing in professional growth opportunities.

Reinforcing employee retention through
workplace / leadership practices.

Page 39

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 65



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

FY 2022-23 GOALS AND PRIORITIES

In December of each year, COMB Division Managers prepare a list of priorities by division
and general area of responsibility. The list is reviewed by the General Manager and refined
as appropriate. The goals are then presented to the Board of Directors at regularly
scheduled public meeting. Outlined below are highlights of priorities, sorted by strategic
initiative, to be initiated during fiscal year 2022-23.

Strategic Initiative 1 - Water Supply Reliability

Goal: Sustain a safe, reliable water supply for our Member Agencies.

Completion of the Lake Cachuma Secured Pipeline project.
Installation of the Emergency Pumping Facility (EPF) Pump Station, if needed.

Implement Phase 2 actions for the Lake Cachuma Water Quality and Sediment
Management Study related to phosphorous and total organic carbon sources.

Operate Lake Cachuma Evaporation and Water Quality Buoy.
Perform bi-weekly water quality samples at Lake Cachuma.

Continue enhancement of Lake Projection model.

Strategic Initiative 2 - Distribution Facilities Improvements

Goal: Identify, prioritize and implement projects necessary to protect, improve, and
sustain the Cachuma Project conveyance system and appurtenant structures.

Continue structure rehabilitation on the lower reach of the South Coast Conduit and
raise all subgrade South Coast conduit subgrade air vents.

Make improvements to the South Coast Conduit in collaboration with Carpinteria
Valley Water District to allow for improved future maintenance of the South Coast
Conduit in that area.

Continued repair and maintenance of COMB facilities and infrastructure.
Continue to improve system records for maintenance and right-of-way program.

Perform a comprehensive update of the GIS information in COMB’s Field Mapplet
system with updated aerial photo imagery and GIS information. Locate and digitize
lateral piping off of the South Coast Conduit.

Continue to organize and digitize historical records with focus on historical photos
of the construction of the South Coast Conduit.

Page 40

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 66



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

FY 2022-23 GOALS AND PRIORITIES (CONTINUED)

Strategic Initiative 3 - Environmental Stewardship and Public Trust Resources

Goal:

Continue to monitor and mitigate for changing climate conditions, develop and

implement strategies to increase sustainability of the steelhead trout population and
improve fish passages along the Santa Ynez River.

Continue implementation of the monitoring and survey program per the 2000
Biological Opinion.

Continue collaboration with Reclamation on best management practices for Hilton
Creek.

Continue collaboration with Reclamation on any monitoring or reporting tasks that
they request regarding compliance with any of the State Water Orders (specifically
WR 89-18 and WR 2019-0148).

Continue annual development and implementation of a Migrant Trapping Plan in
collaboration with Reclamation.

Collaborate with Reclamation on the implementation and reporting of the Passage
Supplementation Program.

Maintain the LSYR O. mykiss scale inventory and conduct analyses on data.

Initiate the PIT (Passive Integrated Transponders) Tag monitoring effort within the
LSYR basin.

Continue working with the US Geological Survey on stream gauge program.
Continue to maintain and develop landowner relationships in the LSYR basin.

Continue education and collaboration with other O. mykiss monitoring programs
within the Southern California Steelhead DPS to improve collective knowledge.

Strategic Initiative 4 - Cost-Effectiveness and Value

Goal: Maintain and improve the cost effectiveness and value of COMB services to our
Member Agencies

Identify and prioritize infrastructure improvement projects through the COMB Five-
Year Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP)

Perform COMB Operations Annual Work Plan activities.

Continue to seek grant funding for upcoming projects, especially for projects listed
within the Infrastructure Improvement Plan and Habitat Improvement Plan.

Investigate and implement new technologies to advance operational efficiencies and
reduce impacts of climate change.

Explore alternative sources of renewable energy.

Develop a Green Fleet Policy.

Page 41

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 67



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

FY 2022-23 GOALS AND PRIORITIES (CONTINUED)

Strategic Initiative 5 - Organizational Policies and Financial Responsibility

Goal: Operate within approved policies in a productive, transparent and efficient manner
to ensure sound financial stability.

Continue discussion with Reclamation to execute a long-term Cachuma Transferred
Project Works Contract.

Continue to work with the Santa Barbara County Office of Emergency Services MAC
group to update the 2017 Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) and COMB Annex.

Enhance financial audit/budget documents.
Operate within approved financial resources

Participate in the ACWA JPIA Commitment to Excellence Program

Advancement of IT network and infrastructure and security protocols.

Advancement of Board Policies and Internal Procedures.

Strategic Initiative 6 - Foster Leadership and Strengthen Workforce Capabilities

Goal:

Continue to promote a safe and positive work environment and provide equal

opportunities for employees to use their diverse talents to grow professionally and prepare
for challenges of the future.

Continue to encourage staff development and certification as water system
distribution operators, qualified applicators, and appropriate safety training.

Enroll management in Leadership program through ACWA JPIA
Develop Employee Retention plan to promote longevity.
Participate in the ACWA JPIA Vector Solutions Online Training Program.

Develop an Employee Health and Wellness plan.

Item #7

Page 42 Exhibit #2
Page 68




Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

LONG TERM CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL PLANNING

COMB operates under an annual operating budget, which is
adopted by the Board of Directors in accordance with
established short and long-term financial plans. Through the

Transferred Project Works contact (O&M Contract), COMB is Infrastructure Improvement Plan
FY 2021-2025

responsible for operating and maintaining the facilities of the
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. COMB does not have title to the
assets of the Cachuma Project. Capital improvements are
recorded as expenditures in the COMB Operating Budget and
funded on a current basis from the COMB Member

Agencies.

The FY 2022-23 Budget includes $6,050,000 for
capital (infrastructure) improvement and non-capital
(special) projects as compared to the FY 2021-22 Budget
of $1,600,050. See pages 84-91 for information on current year projects.

COMB has developed a comprehensive five-year Infrastructure Improvement Plan (IIP)
that is used as an internal guideline for forecasting, budgeting, and long-term financial
planning. The IIP formalizes the strategy for implementation of capital projects and
programs needed to carry out the goals and policy objectives of the Board. The IIP is
organized and structured to identify and prioritize rehabilitation projects necessary to
protect, improve, and sustain a reliable source of water conveyed from the Cachuma
Project to the South Coast communities of Santa Barbara County.

The IIP identifies the improvements needed in the Cachuma Project System and sets forth
review criteria to enable the prioritization of projects for scheduling improvements during
the five-year period. The IIP is intended to serve many purposes including:

¢ Long Range Planning Document

As a long-range planning document, the IIP describes the key infrastructure
improvements needed for a five-year horizon and identifies additional projects that
should be evaluated on a regular basis for potential future inclusion. The goal of the
five-year plan is to identify the critical needs projects for near-term implementation.

e Cachuma Project Cost Analysis

The IIP provides an outline of costs associated with rehabilitation of the Cachuma
Project that serves to provide guidance for long-term rate analysis efforts
performed by our Member Agencies.

Page 43

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 69



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

LONG TERM CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

e Budget Development

The annual COMB Operating Budget outlines discrete projects and affiliated costs to
communicate needed investment for the forthcoming fiscal cycle. The IIP provides
detailed guidance on priority projects to be included in the annual operating budget.

e Communication to Stakeholders

The IIP communicates to COMB’s stakeholders the array of infrastructure
improvements necessary to maintain a reliable supply of water. Communicating the
condition of assets and the challenges associated with competing financial resources
provides a basis for our Member Agencies to consider COMB projects and their own
priorities.

Prior to drafting the IIP, COMB conducted a critical needs assessment, which included an
internal inventory of assets, a conditions assessment, an estimate of replacement costs, and
a projection by which assets require immediate or near-term replacement for major
infrastructure and appurtenances. This assessment was supplemented with the U.S. Bureau
of Reclamation site inspection recommendations (periodic and comprehensive reviews) of
selected Cachuma Project facilities and components.

In developing the IIP, COMB staff, with input from the Member Agencies’ technical staff,
developed the following list of goals to serve as the guiding principles of the plan.

IIP Established Goals

e Carryout COMB’s mission of providing a reliable source of water to our Member
Agencies.

e Identify infrastructure vulnerabilities and operational deficiencies (Risk
Management).

e Provide for a systematic selection of critical projects.

¢ Maintain current level of service while allocating infrastructure improvement costs
over time.

e Identify funding requirements for long term capital planning.

e Serve as a basis for annual budget development.

e C(reate a framework for ensuring reliable and sustainable operations.

e Serve as a planning document for the Board of Directors.

Page 44

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 70



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

LONG TERM CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

COMB staff incorporated elements of COMB internal analysis and Reclamation site
inspections to produce a list of projects for further consideration. The projects included in
the IIP represent the minimal level of investment necessary to continue to meet regulatory
requirements, critical needs, and sustain vital infrastructure.

IIP Project Ranking

To evaluate projects systematically, COMB created project priorities, as shown on the
following page, and ranked the projects in order of criticality. The purpose of utilizing this
methodology was to accurately separate the projects into categories from high to low
priority. The ranking informs the Board of Directors when reviewing, approving, and
budgeting for implementation of important infrastructure improvement projects.

COMB staff prioritized a comprehensive list of proposed projects using the following six
priority categories:

Regulatory or Legal Requirement

Projects that are subject to the requirements of federal, state, or local regulatory agencies,
with noncompliance resulting in fines or other adverse actions.

Required to Maintain Current Level of Service

Projects that maintain the current level of service to COMB’s Member Agencies. These
projects reduce potential disruptions, water loss, property damage that could occur
without replacement. In general, these projects include the replacement or rehabilitation
of valves and infrastructure that are inoperable, or whose failure would result in an
unplanned shutdown of deliveries or disruption in the transmission of critical operations
data.

Addressing Critical Deficiency

A critical deficiency has the potential to jeopardize COMB'’s ability to serve its Member
Agencies in a significant manner. These deficiencies have been identified by Bureau of
Reclamation, COMB staff, or outside experts. Projects under this category address known
critical conditions that could result in major infrastructure failure, deteriorated water
quality, limited water production, or unsafe working conditions.

Evaluates Critical / Significant Deficiency

Potential critical / significant deficiencies have been identified which require further
engineering investigation and design. These projects would evaluate the criticality of the
deficiency and potential solutions to mitigate the deficiency.

Page 45

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 71



Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

LONG TERM CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Proactive Aging / Deficient Infrastructure Replacement

These projects provide funding for the proactive replacement, upgrade, or improvement of
a facility that is near or at the end of its useful service life. Although an asset may be at its
assumed end of useful life, it may remain functional for many years; therefore, the
replacement is considered proactive until the asset becomes inoperable.

System Reliability and Resilience Improvements

These projects consist of system improvements, which improve system reliability or
provide backup systems to maintain service levels during and after emergency events (i.e.
wildfires, earthquakes, floods).

Updates to IIP

The IIP is updated on an annual basis and submitted to the Operations Committee for
review and comment. Following Committee review and recommendations, the IIP and its
annual amendments are presented to the Board of Directors for final approval

The COMB IIP, including five year cost projections, can be found on the COMB website at
www.cachuma-board.org/infrastructure-improvement-program.

Five Year Financial Plan

The Five Year Financial Plan (Plan) is prepared to provide the Cachuma Project Member
Units (Member Units) pro forma projections of the COMB’s operating expenditures and
pass-through charges. The Plan is prepared only as an informational tool and is not
formally adopted by the COMB Board of Directors. This information is used by the Member
Units for their budget and long-term planning purposes. Additionally, these projections are
used by the Member Units to assist in establishing water rates for their local agencies and
ensuring their water system revenues are sufficient to meet their operating expenses and
debt coverage covenants.

COMB'’s operating expenditures and general and administrative expenses are projected
with a 3% inflation factor. Infrastructure improvement projects are based on the approved
COMB IIP for FY 2021-2025. Historically, IIP projects have averaged $1.5M per year.
Board policy requires that all projects be approved thru Committee and by the Board prior
to commencement. The Plan also includes “pass-through” charges from the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation and the State Water Resources Control Board. While these expenditures are
not considered expenses for COMB, the charges are collected by COMB and paid to the
respective agencies; therefore, they are included in the projection. Costs are allocated
based on contractual agreements or approved methodologies and vary by contract.

Page 46

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 72


http://www.cachuma-board.org/infrastructure-improvement-program

Section III - Budget and Planning Overview | FY 2022-23

LONG TERM CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Table 3.2 - Five Year Financial Plan (1)

| 2022-23 | 202324 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 | Note |
COMB Gross Operating Budget S 10,018,544 S 6,252,400 S 5,629,972 S 6,011,371 S 6,146,713 (2),(3)
USBR O&M Costs 2,200,000 2,266,000 2,333,980 2,403,999 2,476,119 g (4)
Bradbury SOD Act 261,648 261,648 261,648 261,648 261,648 g (5)
Cachuma Project Renewal Fund 155,723 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 " (6)
Lauro SOD Act 47,404 47,404 47,404 47,404 47,404 g (5)
SWRCB Water Rights Fee 70,720 72,134 73,577 75,049 76,550 g (7)
USBR O&M Deficits 59,451 - - - ="
Non-Member Agency Obligation 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 g (9)
Total Gross Obligation 12,873,490 9,114,586 8,561,581 9,014,471 9,223,433
Less Offsetting Revenues:

- Grant Funding S (3,000,000) $ - S - S - S -

- Other Funding (550,000)

- Warren Act Trust Fund/Renewal Fund (274,016) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)

- County Betterment Fund (90,000) (90,000) (90,000) (90,000) (90,000)

- Non-Member Agency Constructive Return (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000)
Total Offsetting Revenues (3,974,016) (450,000) (450,000) (450,000) (450,000)
Total Net Obligation S 8899474 S 866458 S 8,111,581 S 8,564,471 S 8,773,433
Projected Obligation by Member Unit:

Goleta Water District S 3,481,850 S 3,369,382 S 3,142,981 S 3,323,047 S 3,404,435
City of Santa Barbara S 3,057,655 S 2,992,011 $ 2,790,967 S 2,950,866 S 3,023,139
Carpinteria Valley Water District S 1,039,166 S 1,016,856 S 948,530 S 1,002,873 S 1,027,435
Montecito Water District S 979,323 S 958,299 S 893,907 S 945,120 S 968,268
Santa Ynez Water Conservation DistrictIDNo1 $ 341,478 S 328,038 S 335,195 S 342,566 S 350,156
Total Net Obligation by Member Unit S 8899473 S 866458 S 8,111,581 S 8,564,471 S 8,773,433

Notes:

1. Projected amounts are for information only and have not been approved by the COMB Board of Directors.

Amounts are subject to change.

2. COMB'’s operating expenditures and general and administrative expenses are projected with a 3% inflation

factor.

3. COMB's infrastructure improvement projects are based upon the approved COMB IIP for FY 2021-2025.

Historically, IIP projects have averaged $1.5M per year. Board policy requires that all projects be approved
thru Committee and by the Board prior to commencement.
4. USBR O&M costs are projected with a 3% inflation factor.

5. Pursuant to US Bureau of Reclamation Safety of Dams Act Repayment Agreement.

6. Based on FY 2022-23. Amounts are variable in nature and are directly tied to the annual amount of State

Water Project Water delivered into the lake.

7. State Water Resources Control Board pass-through cost projected with a 3% inflation factor.
8. GWD and SYRWCD ID No. 1, only - Includes USBR deficit amounts FY 2015-17 amortized over 5 years.

9. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Separation Agreement, ID No. 1 was deemed no longer a
Member Agency of COMB and had departed from the COMB JPA Agreement as of May 27, 2016. ID No. 1
continues to be a member of the Cachuma Project which carries certain benefits and obligations associated
with the Project as outlined in various agreements. Payments received from the ID No. 1 will be returned to
the COMB Member Agencies through a constructive return.

Item #7
Exhibit #2

Page 47

Page 73



This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 74



~ M

SECTION IV - COMB MANAGED REVENUES




This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 76



Section [V - COMB Managed Revenues | FY 2022-23

COMB MANAGED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

In addition to the annual Operating Budget, COMB collects and manages various other
assessments, which are considered pass-through revenues and charges. COMB has been
granted the authority, by various agreements, for administering the provisions, collection
and payment of these revenues including the following:

e USBR Entitlement Obligation (USBR Water Rates)

e Bradbury Safety of Dams (SOD) Repayment Obligations
e Lauro Safety of Dams (SOD) Repayment Obligations

e State Water Resource Control Board Water Rights Fee

COMB is also responsible for managing various federal, state and local grant revenues, as
well as various restricted trust fund accounts to be used for the betterment of the Cachuma
Project.

For FY 2022-23, COMB’s projected managed revenues are $12,657,766 as shown in Figure
4.1, and Tables 4.1. The previous ten fiscal years’ COMB Managed Revenues are shown in

Table 4.2.

Figure 4.1 - FY 2022-23 COMB Managed Revenue by Source

CVWD Cooperative
Agrmt Funding
Grant Revenue $550,000 Water Rights Fee
$3,000,000 (4.4%) $70,720
(24.1%) (0.6%)

WATF/RF/BF Fund

$364,016 B Net Operating Assessments
(2.9%) B USBR Water Rates & Deficits
M SOD Act Repayment
B WATF/RF/BF Fund

m Grant Revenue

m CVWD Cooperative Agrmt

= Water Rights Fee

SOD Act Net Operating
Repayment Assessments
$309,051 USBR Water $6,104,528
(2.5%) Rates & Deficits (47.4%)
. 0,
=7 $2,259,451
(18.1%)
Item #7
Page 48 Exhibit #2

Page 77





















































https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-resources/public-agency-actuarial-valuation-reports
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-resources/public-agency-actuarial-valuation-reports















































































Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
OPERATIONS DIVISION: INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

SCC Isolation Valve - Lower Reach (Account: 6136) $ 500,000

COMB staff has made significant progress on the rehabilitation of the South Coast Conduit
(SCC) system and appurtenances starting in the late 1990s and early 2000s. The upper
reach of the SCC system, which includes the area from the South Portal to Lauro Reservoir,
was extensively rehabilitated during that time. COMB staff worked with the Bureau of
Reclamation and consultant engineers to repair and replace important infrastructure
components to achieve a reliable conveyance system in the upper reach.

Appurtenant structures in the lower reach of the system are over seventy years old and are
considered to be at their maximum life span. The COMB Five-Year Infrastructure
Improvement Plan (IIP) included a plan to rehabilitate over thirty aging lateral structures
in this section. Each connection contains two gate valves, a meter and often an air vent
component. During FY 2021-22, COMB entered into a Cooperative Agreement with
Carpinteria Valley Water District (CVWD) to rehabilitate the system utilizing financial
assistance from the District.

The cooperative agreement was divided into two phases. The first phase was to be
completed in FY 2021-22 in the approximate cost of $450,000 to each agency based on the
costs for the installation of an in-line isolation valve near La Mirada Drive adjacent to
Highway 192. The isolation valve allows a section of the South Coast Conduit, which
currently serves eleven laterals, to be subdivided to two segments. The La Mirada in-line
isolation valve also allows three air
vents and two blow-off structures to
be rehabilitated in the Carpinteria
area. This would allow COMB to
complete a Category 1 recommend-
ation from the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation to rehabilitate subgrade
air vent structures. CVWD in turn
agreed rehabilitate lateral structures
in Phase 1 equal to the $450,000 costs
of the La Mirada Isolation Valve. COMB
completed construction of the La
Mirada isolation valve in April 2022.

Page 86

ltem#7
Exhibit #2
Pagel2]l



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
OPERATIONS DIVISION: INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

SCC Isolation Valve - Lower Reach (Account: 6136) - Continued

The Cooperative Agreement includes a Review of Progress of work after Phase 1 is
complete. After the review, depending on the performance of work, the amount of funds
expended, and the current funding available (which may be impacted by drought
conditions) the COMB Board will have discretion on the continuation of Phase 2 and
approval of the second in-line isolation valve (Lillingston) for construction in Fiscal Year
2022-2023. The Lillingston isolation valve was originally estimated to cost $500,000 and
would be reviewed and approved by the COMB Board in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to initiate
Phase 2 of the agreement.

SCC Lower Reach Lateral Structures (Account: 6137) $ 550,000

There are forty-four lateral connections housed in concrete cylinder structures on the
lower reach of the South Coast Conduit. The function of these connections is to provide
water to sections of the Montecito Water District and Carpinteria Valley Water District.
Each connection contains a gate valve, a check valve and an air vent component. Thirty-five
of the existing lateral appurtenances in the lower reach pose an operational risk due to age,
corrosion, and unreliable valve operating conditions. The dependability of these valves is
necessary to provide reliable water service to customers served in sections of the
Montecito and Carpinteria Water District Boundary areas. The consequence of not
completing this project could result in lateral failure/inoperability or complicating
operations if leak-by or a major failure occurred.

This project would replace valves, air vents, and check valves on active lateral connections.
The project will require shutdowns for the specified turnout distribution supply areas and
would be coordinated with the impacted Member Agencies. The lateral valves need to be
replaced prior to future planned shutdowns of the South Coast Conduit in the Carpinteria
area. CVWD is scheduled to complete Phase 1 of Lower Reach Lateral Isolation Valve
Replacement Project in 2022 for $450,000. A portion of the work will need to be completed
in the Fall/Winter of 2022 during a planned shutdown of the SCC.

Phase 2 of the Lower Reach Lateral Isolation Valve Replacement Project is scheduled to
occur in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 for $550,000 following the Review in Progress after Phase 1
of the Cooperative Agreement is complete.

Page 87

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 122















Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Program Description

To maintain and support all associated costs of operation and maintenance as they relate to
the implementation of the NMFS Biological Opinion and the Lower Santa Ynez River Fish
Management Plan.

Labor (Accounts: 4100 - 4152) $ 785,564

The Fisheries Division Labor line item reflects labor costs and benefits for a Senior
Resource Scientist, a three-member field crew, and four part-time seasonal bio-aide
positions. The benefits include medical, dental and vision insurance coverage, a $20,000
life insurance policy per employee, deferred compensation, matching social security
contributions, mandatory workers' compensation coverage, an employee assistance
program (EAP), FICA/Medicare and a CalPERS retirement contribution (2% @ 55 formula)
Starting July 1, 2017, classic members began paying a portion of the employee cost (EPMC).
For FY 2022-23, the classic member’s contribution rate is set at 7.0%. All employees hired
after January 2013 and who are not classified as “classic” members will contribute 6.75%
of the CalPERS retirement premium from their bi-weekly paycheck (2% @ 62 formula).
This line item includes a 5.17% COLA per the annual calculation.

Totals by Account

4100 Labor Biology Crew $448,196
4114 Labor Seasonal Crew $ 68,000
4151 CalPERS $ 86,571
4150 Health Insurance $117,498
4150 Workers Compensation $ 25,810
4152 FICA $ 39,489
Total $785,564

Page 92

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 127



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Vehicles and Equipment (Accounts: 4270 - 4290) $ 122,500

The Vehicles and Equipment section is made up of three accounts which include funds for
the purchase of vehicles, fuel, parts, inspections and maintenance of vehicles and
equipment.

Account 4270 includes costs necessary to operate vehicles and equipment such as fuel, oil,
tires, parts, inspections, and labor, etc. This account reflects amounts determined by
historical expense data and projected operational needs. Account 4280 contains funds for
the purchase or replacement of equipment or large tools as may be necessary in the fiscal
year. Account 4290 includes funding for all miscellaneous items affiliated with vehicles or
equipment.

These accounts are increased or decreased annually to reflect changes in the price.

Totals by Account:

4270 Vehicles $ 30,000
4280 Fixed Capital $ 90,000
4290 Miscellaneous $ 2,500
Total $122,500
Contract Labor (Accounts: 4220 - 4222) $ 14,100

The Contract Labor account contains funds for outside services/labor to support
equipment calibration on flow meters and sonde meters, and funds for technical assistance
corresponding to the operation, maintenance, and performance review of completed fish
passage projects.

Completed tributary projects at Rancho San Julian, Cross Creek Ranch, and Quiota Creek
Crossings require annual performance evaluation; licensed fish passage engineers need to
conduct the structural evaluation whereas the biological evaluation and report are done by
COMB staff.

Totals by Account:

4221 Equip Calibration $ 3,000
4222 Project Maintenance $11,100
Total $14,100
Item #7
Page 93 Exhibit #2

Page 128



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Materials and Supplies (Account: 4390) $ 7,000

The Materials and Supplies account covers costs for the purchase of materials needed for
the Fisheries Monitoring Program, specifically monitoring for migration, spawning and
over-summering. This can include constructing and repairing fish migration traps (pvc,
netting, plywood, locks, waders, etc.) and the equipment necessary to conduct snorkel (dry
suit, masks, snorkels, hoods, gloves, etc.) and redd surveys (waders, clipboards, etc.).

Other Expenses (Account: 4502) $ 5,000

The Other Operating Expenses account includes funds to pay for uniforms and gear for the
fisheries employees. This account is based on actual charges for the aforementioned
services and changes in amounts are made only as necessary.

L OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES $ 934,164

Quiota Creek Fish Passage Project

Page 94

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 129



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Program Description

The General and Administrative accounts reflect costs for support of all fisheries division
administrative functions of COMB. The salaries and benefits are divided at a 65% - 35%
basis between the Operations Division and the Fisheries Division based on payroll
allocations. General and Administrative expenses have been reduced to the lowest level of
effective operation for FY 2022-23

Directors Fees (Account: 5426) $7,000

This account reflects Directors' fees at a rate of $150.00 per meeting. The Directors will
decide future increases by public meeting and change of ordinance. This cost is allocated
between Operations and Fisheries divisions.

Legal (Account: 5407) $ 25,000

This account reflects the costs for General Counsel affiliated with the Fisheries Division
program of work, as well as, anticipated litigation.

Audit (Account: 5441) $ 12,250

This account reflects costs for a portion of the annual COMB financial audit and any single
audit requirements.

Liability and Property Insurance (Account: 5443) $ 17,745

This account reflects a portion of insurance costs for coverage provided by ACWA/JPIA for
all general liability and property i.e., buildings, structures, computers, modular furniture,
copiers, postage meters, vehicles and replacement costs of all properties belonging to
COMB.

Health and Workers Compensation (Account: 5401) $ 44,115

This account reflects costs for 35% of all administrative staff health premiums (medical,
dental, vision and life), and employee assistance program (EAP), deferred compensation
and workers' compensation premiums. The cost for health premiums is a set premium
amount for each employee and their dependents. This line item includes a projected
increase in health premiums that will go into effect in January 2023.

Page 95

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 130



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

CalPERS (Account: 5402) $ 42,418

This account reflects 35% percent of costs for the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System for administrative personnel charged to the fisheries division. COMB pays the
employer and a portion of the employee cost for classic members and new hires pay 50%
of the normal cost contributions. Starting July 1, 2017, classic members began paying a
portion of the employee cost (EPMC). For FY 2022-23, the classic member’s contribution
rate is set at 7.0%. All employees hired after January 2013, who are not classified as
“classic” members, contribute 6.75% of the CalPERS retirement premium from their bi-
weekly paycheck (2% @ 62 formula).

FICA and Medicare (Account: 5403) $ 13,366

This account reflects 35% of the matching share of social security and Medicare taxes for
all administrative employees.

Salaries (Accounts: 5404, 5405, 5408, 5409, 5419) $ 174,724

This account reflects a 35% allocation of salaries for the General Manager, Administrative
Manager, Administrative Assistant Il and an Administrative Analyst.

Postage and Office Supplies (Account: 5410) $ 4,000

The Office Expense and Postage account reflects the cost of all office supplies and postage
for general and administrative tasks attribute to the fisheries division.

Office Equipment / Leases (Account: 5411) $ 8,533

The Office Equipment / Leases account includes the fisheries division portion of leases and
quarterly service agreements for postage machine, copier equipment and any maintenance
fees.

Miscellaneous Administrative Expense (Account: 5412) $ 7,500

This account contains funds necessary for office cleaning, Board meeting supplies, Paychex
payroll costs, outside copy costs and other minor miscellaneous expenses.

Item #7

Page 96 Exhibit #2
Page 131



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Communications (Account: 5413) $ 4,455

This account contains funds necessary for the telephone service, long distance service,
cable internet service, and staff cell phones.

Utilities (Account: 5414) $ 5,243

This account contains funds necessary to provide utilities to the administrative offices
affiliated with the fisheries division program of work.

Membership Dues (Account: 5415) $ 6,200

This account reflects costs for membership dues for the American Fisheries Society as well
as a portion of ACWA dues as they pertain to the fisheries division employees. This account
also covers subscriptions for professional publications.

Administrative Fixed Assets (Account: 5416) $7,200

This fiscal year's fixed assets include the purchase of computers according to the
replacement schedule and office equipment / furniture as needed.

Computer Consultant (Account: 5418) $ 15,000

This account was established to fund needs for all computer and internal network systems
support through outside computer consultant services. It also accommodates purchasing
and updating of software licenses.

Employee Education / Subscriptions (Account: 5425) $ 2,500

This account was established to provide employees with the ability to obtain professional
training, required certifications and for management training purposes specifically for in
field and office operations, and safety and regulatory compliance. This account also
provides for employee related subscriptions to professional fisheries organizations.

Page 97

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 132



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative Travel (Account: 5430) $ 2,500

This account provides for actual travel costs for professional conferences, seminars,
training, and strategy meetings that are attended by the General Manager and/or staff
throughout the fiscal year.

Public Information (Account: 5431) $1,500

This account is for miscellaneous costs that may arise out of public records act requests,
newsletters, webpage support or other public information requirements.

SUBTOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $398,049

Item #7
Page 98 Exhibit #2
Page 133




Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: PROGRAM SUPPORT SERVICES

Biological Opinion / FMP Implementation (Account: 6201) $42,000

This line item provides funding for outside consultant support on activities, which include
participation in the NFMS Biological Opinion compliance preparation as well as review of
technical reports, study plans, participation in coordination and review meetings and
conference calls.

BO and WR Order 2019-0148 Compliance Tasks and Support

This task addresses ongoing Cachuma Project
Biological Opinion (BO or BiOp) and WR Order 2019-
0148 compliance efforts and implementation of the
Lower Santa Ynez River Fisheries Monitoring Program
(FMP). As needed, consultants will provide technical
and analytical support and review of the fisheries
monitoring program and any proposed study plans.
This may require participation of an advisory group to
obtain consensus on the recommendations. A fish
passage engineer will review, evaluate, and develop
technical elements of fisheries related monitoring, fish
passage and restoration program elements. In addition,
this item includes bio-statistician support and genetic
tissue analysis (fish fin clips) conducted by a National Marine Fisheries Service certified
geneticist. Activities may involve background research, concept development, content
development and production schematics support for the ongoing BO, WR Order 2019-0148 and
FMP activities.

AMC and CC Participation and Technical Support

Conference calls preparation and follow-up per call as well as participation in face-to-face
meeting of the Adaptive Management Committee (AMC) and Consensus Committee (CC) if
necessary. Technical support to COMB in preparing work products for the AMC and the CC as
required.

Review of Fisheries Monitoring Reports

Review of any fisheries monitoring reports that are prepared by the Cachuma Project Biology
Staff. These reports would be compliance measures for terms and conditions presented in the
BO and WR Order 2019-0148 and would include the Annual Monitoring Report and technical
memos prepared for Reclamation as well as the AMC, CC or COMB Board. This may include
participation on the Science Advisory Committee to discuss comments on the reviewed reports.

Page 99

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 134



Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: PROGRAM SUPPORT SERVICES

GIS and Mapping - 6202 $ 10,000

This account provides funds for the purchase and maintenance of the GIS and GPS system
components, software (ESRI, AutoCAD, Field Mapplet, MapLogic, and Photoshop),
hardware, aerial imagery, and GIS/GPS technical support.

USGS Stream Gauge Program (Account: 6205) $ 105,000

This line item is to fund the required stream discharge and water quality monitoring on the
lower Santa Ynez River and its tributaries in compliance with the NMFS Biological Opinion.

SUBTOTAL PROGRAM SUPPORT SERVICES $ 157,000

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 135

Page
100




Appendix | FY 2022-23

COMB OPERATING BUDGET NARRATIVE
FISHERIES DIVISION: HABITAT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Oak Tree Restoration Program (Account: 6207) $ 18,000

This line item is to fund the tenth year of oak tree planning efforts at several planting sites
bordering Lake Cachuma and Bradbury Dam. This planting and maintenance program is
intended to result in a 2:1 replacement of oak trees lost due to the higher water elevations
during surcharge events.

Oak Tree Restoration Program

Tributary Project Improvements (Account: 6303) $ 10,000

This line item is to fund technical assistance provided by a fish passage engineer for tasks
anticipated to include refinement of monitoring methods and procedures, hydraulic review
of fish passage within a stream network, troubleshooting of general operation and
maintenance issues, and review of miscellaneous technical data and reporting.

SUBTOTAL HABITAT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS $ 28,000

SUBTOTAL PROG SUPPORT AND HABITAT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS $ 185,000

TOTAL FISHERIES DIVISION BUDGET $ 1,517,212

Page

101

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 136



Appendix | FY 2022-23

RECAP - TOTAL COMB OPERATING BUDGET

FY 2022-23
COMB OPERATIONS DIVISION $8,501,331
COMB FISHERIES DIVISION $1,517,212
TOTAL COMB GROSS OPERATING BUDGET $10,018,544
LESS: OFFSETTING REVENUES ($3,914,016)
TOTAL COMB NET OPERATING BUDGET $6,104,528

Lake Cachuma County Park

Item #7

Page Exhibit #2

102 Page 137



Appendix | FY 2022-23

This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Page o

Exhibit #2

103 Page 138



Appendix | FY 2022-23

SUMMARY OF FUNDS
BY FUND TYPE

Item #7

Page Exhibit #2

104 Page 139



Appendix

FY 2022-23

Summary of Funds by Fund Type - FY 2022-23 (1)

General Warren Act Renewal
Category Fund Trust Fund Fund Total

Revenues:
COMB Net Operating Budget @ $ 6,104,528 $ -3 -3 6,104,528
USBR Water Rates/Deficits 2,259,451 - - 2,259,451
Grant Funding 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
CVWD Cooperative Agreement Funding 550,000 - - 550,000
Warren Act Trust Fund - 118,293 - 118,293
Bradbury SOD Act 261,647 - - 261,647
SB County Contribution 90,000 - - 90,000
Water Rights Fee 70,720 - - 70,720
Lauro SOD Act 47,404 - - 47,404
Renewal Fund - - 155,723 155,723
Total Managed Revenues: $ 12,383,750 $ 118,293 $ 155,723 $ 12,657,766
Expenditures:
Contracts/Agreements

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation $ 2,259,451 $ - $ - $ 2,259,451

Bradbury SOD Act Repayment 261,647 - - 261,647

Lauro SOD Act Repayment 47,404 - - 47,404

Water Rights Fee 70,720 - - 70,720
Subtotal: $ 2,639,222 $ - $ - $ 2,639,222
Personnel

Operations Division $ 1,090,526 $ - $ - $ 1,090,526

Fisheries Division " 531,547.54 98,293 155,723 785,564

Administrative Division 905,927 - - 905,927
Subtotal: $ 2,528,000 $ 98,293 $ 155,723 $ 2,782,016
Operation and Maintenance

Operations Division $ 470,800 $ - $ - $ 470,800

Fisheries Division 138,600 10,000 - 148,600
Subtotal: $ 609,400 $ 10,000 $ - $ 619,400
General and Administrative

Operations Division $ 258,702 $ - $ - $ 258,702

Fisheries Division 123,426 - - 123,426
Subtotal: $ 382,128 $ - $ - $ 382,128
Infastructure and Improvement Projects

Infrastructure Improvement Projects $ 5,890,000 $ - $ - $ 5,890,000

Special Projects 160,000 - - $ 160,000

Habitat Improvement Projects " 18,000 10,000 - $ 28,000

Program Support Senices 157,000 - - $ 157,000
Subtotal: $ 6,225,000 $ 10,000 $ - $ 6,235,000
Total Expenditures before Debt: $ 12,383,750 $ 118,293 $ 155,723 $ 12,657,766
Debt Senice - American Riviera Bank - - - -
Total Expenditures: $ 12,383,750 $ 118,293 $ 155,723 $ 12,657,766
Net Increase (Dcrease)
in Fund Balances $ - $ - $ - $ -

(1) COMB operates under one fund for financial statement and budgetary purposes. Because COMB is a pass-
through agency, all revenues are equal to the expenditures included in the budget. As such, the overall
Fund Balance excluding the Warren Act Trust Fund and Renewal Fund is expected to be zero.
Unexpended funds are identified through the audit process and returned to the Member Agencies on an

annual basis.

Page

105

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 140



Appendix | FY 2022-23

DEBT SERVICE
Page Exhibi 4
106

Page 141



Appendix | FY 2022-23

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable

Bradburyv Dam SOD

On July 1, 2002, COMB executed a repayment contract with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
under the Department of Interior of the United States. Under the terms of the agreement
and in accordance with the United States Safety of Dams Act, COMB will reimburse
Reclamation for fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of SOD Act funds expended by
Reclamation to preserve the structural integrity of Bradbury Dam and related Cachuma
Project facilities. COMB entered into a repayment contract with Reclamation when the
project was deemed substantially complete. The repayment contract, as executed, calls for
a repayment of 15% of a total cost of $45,276,008 or approximately $6,791,000 plus
interest, as appropriate, over a 50-year period.

The repayment obligation has been allocated fifty-one and three-tenths percent (51.3%) to
irrigation uses or $3,483,989 and forty eight and seven tenths percent (48.7%) to
municipal and industrial uses or $3,307,412. The Irrigation allocation bears no interest and
repayment commenced in fiscal year ending 2017. Interest during construction of
$325,477 was added to the M&I Allocation. During construction, COMB made advances of
$1,496,148 that were applied against the M&I Allocation amounts. Accounting for advances
made by COMB during construction, the balance due under the M&I Allocation contract was
$2,136,741.

COMB’s payment obligation for FY 2022-23 is $261,648 and assesses the Cachuma Project
Member Units in accordance with each Member’'s Cachuma Project entitlement
percentages. The annual payment requirements to retire the contract through October 1,
2051, including interest payments at 5.856%, are presented in the following table. This
table does not include future adjustments that may be made by Reclamation to the
Bradbury Dam repayment contract due to additional incurred costs.

Table 6.1 - Bradbury Dam SOD Obligation

M&I Allocation Irrigation
FYE Principal Interest Allocation Total

2023 $124,041 $40,829 $96,778 $261,648
2024 131,305 33,565 96,778 261,648
2025 138,994 25,876 96,778 261,648
2026 147,133 17,737 96,778 261,648
2027 155,749 9,121 96,778 261,648
2028 - 2032 483,890 483,890
2033 - 2037 483,890 483,890
2041 - 2042 483,890 483,890
2043 - 2047 483,890 483,890
2048 - 2052 483,890 483,890
Total $697,222 $127,128 $2,903,340 $3,727,690

Item #7

Pl‘:)g; Exhibit #2

Page 142



Appendix | FY 2022-23

DEBT SERVICE (CONTINUED)
SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable
Lauro Dam SOD

On March 21, 2007, COMB executed a repayment contract with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
under the Department of Interior of the United States. Under the terms of the agreement
and in accordance with the United States Safety of Dams Act, COMB will reimburse
Reclamation for fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of SOD Act funds expended by
Reclamation to preserve the structural integrity of Lauro Dam and reservoir; total costs not
to exceed $17,314,125. The primary contract for construction of the modification project
was awarded by Reclamation in September 2005 and the work was deemed substantially
complete in February 2007.

The total cost of the Lauro Dam SOD Act project was to be re-evaluated and repayment
agreement amended, as necessary. During 2017, Reclamation completed its final
accounting for the project and issued a final repayment contract. The repayment obligation
has been allocated fifty and seventy-two one-hundredths percent (50.72%) to irrigation
uses or $512,139, and forty-nine and twenty-eight hundredths percent (49.28%) to
municipal and industrial uses or $497,598. The Irrigation allocation bears no interest.

COMB’s payment obligation for FY 2022-23 is $47,405 and assesses the COMB Member
Agencies (only) in accordance with each Member Agencies’ pro-rata Cachuma Project
entitlement percentages. The annual payment requirements to retire the contract through
October 1, 2057, including interest payments at 4.556%, are presented in the following
table. This table represents the final repayment contract amount issued during fiscal year
2017.

Table 6.2 - Lauro Dam SOD Obligation

M&I Allocation Irrigation
FYE Principal Interest Allocation Total

2023 $21,549 $13,629 $12,227 47,405
2024 22,531 12,647 12,227 47,405
2025 23,558 11,620 12,227 47,405
2026 24,630 10,547 12,227 47,405
2027 25,753 9,425 12,227 47,405
2028 - 2032 147,469 28,418 61,136 237,023
2033 -2037 33,645 1,533 61,136 96,313
2038 - 2042 61,136 61,136
2043 - 2047 61,136 61,136
2048 - 2052 61,136 61,136
2053 - 2057 61,136 61,136
2058 12,227 12,227
Total $299,134 $87,819 $440,179 $827,131

Item #7

';‘;g; Exhibit #2

Page 143



Appendix

FY 2022-23

DEBT SERVICE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Long Term Debt - FY 2023

Projected changes in long-term debt for FY 2022-23 by obligation are reflected in the

following table.
Table 6.3 - Changes in Long Term Debt FY 2022-23
Beginning Ending
Balance Principal Balance
Obligation July 1, 2022 Additions Payments | Adjustments | June 30, 2023
Bradbury SOD $3,600,543 $0 $220,819 $0 $3,379,724
Lauro SOD 739,313 0 33,776 0 705,537
Total $4,339,856 $0 $254,595 $0 $4,085,261
Page Item #7
109 Exhibit #2

Page 144



Appendix | FY 2022-23

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES

Item #7

Page Exhibit #2

110 Page 145



Appendix | FY 2022-23

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

In support of our mission to provide a reliable source of water to our Member Agencies in
an efficient and cost effective manner, COMB has identified the following key performance
measures to demonstrate our efforts in achieving our objective. Additional metrics will be
developed during FY 2022-23.

Water Conveyed by Year, by Source of Water Via South Coast Conduit (Acre Feet) o

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average

Cachuma Project Deliveries 3,904 2,965 12,423 17917 22,657 11973 (a)
State Water Project (SWP) Deliveries @ 13,149 14,618 2,476 705 2,457 6,681 (b)
So. Coast Storage (Gain/Loss) 103 55 (122) 177 (26) 38
Total 17,157 17,638 14,777 18,799 25,088 18,692

Water Conveyed by Year, by COMB Member Agency Via South Coast Conduit (Acre Feet) ™

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average

Goleta Water District 7,696 7,143 7,801 9,995 10,226 8,572
City of Santa Barbara 2,783 4,986 1,753 2,149 8,059 3,946
Carpinteria Valley Water District 3,149 1,435 3,177 3,311 3,013 2,817
Montecito Water District 2,726 3,362 1,902 2,493 3,417 2,780
Other (¥) 700 657 266 674 398 539
Total 17,054 17,583 14,899 18,622 25,114 18,654 (a+b)

(*) Includes Includes SWP participants: La Cumbre Mutal Water District, Raytheon, and Morehart Land Company

Apparent Water Loss (Target = +/- 6%)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average

Water Production (*) 18,053 17,855 14,761 18,721 24,854 18,849
Water Deliveries 17,157 17,638 14,777 18,799 25,088 18,692
Differenence = Apparent Water Loss (AWL) 896 217 (16) (78) (234) 157
AWL % 4.96% 1.22% -0.11% -042% -0.94% 0.83%

(*) Cachuma Lake Diversion + Tecolote Tunnel Intrusion + County Park Usage

Planned Maintenance Hours to Distribution System Length

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average
Maintenance Hours 4,278 3,652 4,773 5,317 4916 4,587
Maintenance Hours/Mile of Pipeline 151 129 168 187 173 162

Underground Service Alert in the COMB Right of Way (ROW)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average

# of Dig Alerts Received and Reviewed
by COMB Staff 850 1,216 1,168 1,091 1,006 1,066

Safety and Training Hours

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Average

Total Safety and Training Hours 146 103 343 142 189 184
Page Item #7
Exhibit #2
111

Page 146



Appendix | FY 2022-23

LIST OF ACRONYMS
AND ABBREVIATIONS

Item #7

Page Exhibit #2

112 Page 147



Appendix | FY 2022-23

ACWA
AMC
AWWA
AF

AFY
AVAR/BO
BO or BiOp
CalPERS
CC

CCFA
CCRB
CCWA
CDFW
City of SB
COMB
COLA
CPI

CSDA
CVWD
DWR
EAP

EPF
EPFP
EPMC
ESRI
FEMA

FY

FYE

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Association of California Water Agencies
Adaptive Management Committee
American Water Works Association

Acre Foot

Acre Feet per Year

Air Vacuum Air Release / Blow Off
Biological Opinion

California Public Employees' Retirement System
Consensus Committee

Central Coast Funding Area

Cachuma Conservation Release Board
Central Coast Water Authority

California Department of Fish and Wildlife
City of Santa Barbara

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
Cost of Living Adjustment

Consumer Price Index

California Special Districts Association
Carpinteria Valley Water District
Department of Water Resources

Employee Assistance Program

Emergency Pumping Facility

Emergency Pumping Facilities Project
Employer Paid Member Contribution
Environmental Systems Research Institute
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year End

Page

113

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 148



Appendix | FY 2022-23

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

FMP Fisheries Monitoring Program

FRGP Fisheries Restoration Grant Program

G&A General and Administrative

GFOA Government Finance Officers Association

GIS Geographic Information System

GPS Global Positioning System

GWD Goleta Water District

HIP Habitat Improvement Plan

[P Infrastructure Improvement Plan

[RWM Integrated Regional Water Management

[RWMP Integrated Regional Water Management Program

JPA Joint Powers Authority

JPIA Joint Power Insurance Authority

MWD Montecito Water District

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NGO Non-Governmental Organizations

NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service

0&M Operations and Maintenance

PEPRA Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act

ROW Right of Way

SB Santa Barbara

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

SCC South Coast Conduit

SOD Safety of Dams

Swp State Water Project

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board

SYR Santa Ynez River

SYRCWD Santa Ynez River Conservation Water District
Page Extibi 12
114

Page 149



Appendix | FY 2022-23

This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Page o

Exhibit #2

115 Page 150



Appendix | FY 2022-23

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Page Exot o

Page 151



Appendix | FY 2022-23

>

B

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Account - A record used to sort, store and summarize a company’s transactions.

Accounting System - The total structure of records and procedures which discover,
record, classify, summarize, and report information on the financial position and results
of a government entity.

Accrual Basis of Accounting - The method of recording financial transactions in the
accounting period in which revenues are earned and expenses are incurred, rather than
only after cash is received or paid.

Acre-Foot of Water - The volume of water that would cover one acre to a depth of one
foot (approximately 325,900 gallons).

Amortization - Gradual reduction, redemption, or liquidation of the balance of an
account according to a specified schedule of times and amounts.

Appropriation - The act of setting aside money for a specific purpose.

Biological Opinion - When a government agency determines, through a biological
assessment or other review, that its action is likely to affect adversely a listed
endangered species, the agency submits to the appropriate regulatory agency a request
for formal consultation. Generally, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services (USFWS) manages
land and freshwater species, while the National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) is
responsible for marine and anadromous species. During formal consultation, the
appropriate regulatory agency and the requesting agency share information about the
proposed project and the species or critical habitat likely to be affected. Once the formal
consultation is completed, the appropriate regulatory agency will prepare a biological
opinion. The conclusion of the biological opinion will state whether the requesting
agency has insured that its action is not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of a
listed species and/or result in the destruction or adverse modification of critical habitat.

Budget - A report of all anticipated expenditures and the sources of moneys to be used
to meet such expenditures.

Budget Adjustment - The process of reallocating budgeted funds to an alternate
account and does not change the overall approved budget amount.

Budget Augmentation - Represents an increase to the approved budget due to an
unanticipated expenditure and the need for additional assessments.

Page

117

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 152



Appendix | FY 2022-23

(o]

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Calendar Year - The period from January 1 through December 31.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife - Within the California Natural Resources
Agency, the Department of Fish and Wildlife manages and protects the state's fish,
wildlife, plant and native habitats. It is responsible for related recreational, commercial,
scientific, and educational uses. https://wildlife.ca.gov/

California Department of Water Resources (DWR) - The state agency responsible for

the State of California’s management and regulation of water usage.
https://water.ca.gov/

California Public Employees’ Retirement System - An agency in the California
executive branch that manages pensions and health benefits for more than 1.6 million

California public employees, retirees, and their families. https://www.calpers.ca.gov/

Capital Expenditures - Amounts expended which result in the acquisition of, or
addition to, fixed assets, including land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment.

Carry-Over - The term used to denote amounts, which are to be expended during one
fiscal year on a contract or obligation but are not expended for various reasons.
Amounts are “carried over” into the subsequent fiscal year.

COMB Member Agency - On January 1, 1957, the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance
Board (COMB) was formed as a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) through an agreement
organized by the Cachuma Project Member Units pursuant to the provisions of Articles
1, 2, and 4 of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code. The
resulting JPA agreement was entered into by the Cachuma Project Member Units, who,
in doing so, became Member Agencies of COMB, in order to provide for the joint exercise
of powers by those Member Agencies for the rights to, the facilities of, and the operation,
maintenance and use of the Reclamation’s project known as the “Cachuma Project.” The
organization is comprised of four Cachuma Project Member Units, known collectively as
COMB’s Member Agencies. They are the Carpinteria Valley Water District, the Goleta
Water District, the Montecito Water District, and the City of Santa Barbara.

Cachuma Project Member Unit - The Cachuma Project Member Units are the
Carpinteria Valley Water District, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, City of
Santa Barbara, and the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement
District No. 1. The Member Units entered into contracts with the Santa Barbara County
Water Agency for the purpose of receiving water from the Cachuma Project for the use
and benefit of the Member Units.

Page

118

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 153


https://wildlife.ca.gov/
https://water.ca.gov/
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/

Appendix | FY 2022-23

(o]

IS

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

COMB Joint Powers Agreement -The original contract was executed on January 1,
1957 and subsequently amended and restated for the establishment of a Board of
Control to operate and maintain the Cachuma Project and exercise the powers of the
Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Articles 1, 2 and 4 of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title
1 of the California Government Code (§6500 et seq.)

Consumer Price Index (CPI) - CPI is a measure of the average change over time in the
prices paid by urban consumers for a market basket of consumer goods and services.
Indexes are available for the U.S. and various geographic areas.
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/cpi-summar

Conveyance — A conveyance system provides for the movement of water, either
natural or manmade. Conveyance infrastructures include natural watercourses, such as
streams, rivers, and groundwater aquifers; and constructed facilities, such as canals and
pipelines, including control structures such as weirs. Conveyance facilities range in size
from small, local, end-user distribution systems to large systems that deliver water to or
drain areas as large as multiple hydrologic regions. Conveyance facilities also require
associated infrastructure, such as pumping plants and power supply, diversion
structures, fish ladders, and fish screens.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report - The annual audited financial report of
COMB, which includes financial statements, statistical information, and extensive
narration, which goes beyond the minimum financial reporting requirements of an
audited financial statement.

Coverage Ratio - The margin of safety for payment of debt service, reflecting the
number of times by which earnings for a period of time exceed debt service payable in
such a period.

Debt - An obligation resulting from the borrowing of money or from the purchase of
goods and services. These include bonds and accounts payable.

Deficiency - A general term indicating the amount by which anything falls short of some
requirement of expectation.

Deficit - The excess of expenditures over revenues during an accounting period.

Page

119

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 154


https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/cpi-summary/

Appendix | FY 2022-23

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

D
Depreciation - An element of cost resulting from the service of long-lived assets in an
economic organization and represents the loss in asset value because of wear,
deterioration, obsolesce or action of the physical elements. In this budget, no specific
depreciation schedule or funding of depreciated assets is provided.

E
Endangered Species Act - An act of the federal government enacted in 1973 that
provides for the conservation of species that are endangered or threatened and the
conservation of the ecosystems on which they depend. A species is considered
endangered if it is in danger of extinction throughout all or a significant portion of its
range. A species is considered threatened if it is likely to become an endangered species
within the foreseeable future.

Enterprise Fund - A fund established to account for the financing of self-supporting
enterprises, such as a utility fund, which render services primarily to the public.

Entity - The basic unit upon which accounting and/or financial reporting activities
focus.

Expenditures - A decrease in net financial resources, or funds paid or to be paid for an
asset obtained, or goods and services obtained regardless of when the expense is
actually paid.

[

Fiscal Year - A twelve-month period of time to which the annual budget applies and, at
the end of which, a governmental unit determines its financial position and the results of
its operations.

Fixed Asset - Assets of a long-term character that are intended to continue to be held or
used, such as land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment.

Fund Balance - Also known as financial position, fund balance is the excess of fund
assets over liabilities, and represents the cumulative effect of revenues and other
financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses. COMB operates under one
fund for financial statement and budgetary purposes. Because COMB is a pass-through
agency, all revenues are equal to the expenditures included in the budget. As such,
overall Fund Balance excluding the Warren Act Trust Fund and Renewal Fund is
expected to be zero.

Item #7

Page Exhibit #2

120 Page 155



Appendix | FY 2022-23

[op)

<

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

GASB - The Government Accounting Standards Board is the source of generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used by state and local governments. As with
most of the entities involved in creating GAAP in the United States, it is a private,
nongovernmental organization. https://www.gasb.org

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles - The uniform accounting principles,
standards, and procedures for the presentation of financial reports. For local
governments, GAAP is set by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Geographical Information System (GIS) - An information system that integrates maps
with electronic data.

Groundwater — Water that occurs beneath the land surface and fills the pore spaces of
the alluvium, soil, or rock formation in which it is situated.

Groundwater Basin — An alluvial aquifer or a stacked series of alluvial aquifers with
reasonably well-defined boundaries in a lateral direction and having a definable bottom.

Infrastructure Improvement Project - A project that results in a new asset (e.g. a
facility, betterment, replacement, equipment, etc.) that has a total cost of at least
$50,000 and a useful life of at least five years. The US Bureau of Reclamation has title to
certain assets of the Cachuma Project. Improvements made to those assets are treated
as expenditures on COMB’s financial statements.

Irrigation Water - Water made available from the Cachuma Project which is used
primarily in the production of agricultural crops or livestock.

Joint Powers Agreement - An agreement entered into by two or more public agencies
that allows them to jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties. JPA is
defined in California Government Code Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 (commencing with
Section 6500).

Joint Powers Authority - A public authority created by a joint exercise of powers
agreement between any two or more governmental agencies. The authority may be
given power to perform any function that all parties to the agreement are empowered to
perform and that will be of benefit to all parties.

Page

121

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 156


https://www.gasb.org/

Appendix | FY 2022-23

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

L
Line Item - Expenditure classifications established to account for and budget the
appropriations approved.

M
Maintenance - The upkeep of physical properties in condition for use or occupancy.
Examples are the inspection of equipment to detect defects and the making of repairs.

Master Contract - Contract Between the United States and Santa Barbara County Water
Agency Providing for Water from the Project (Contract No. 175r-1802R) is between the
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and the Santa Barbara County Water Agency and provides
for the diversion, storage, carriage and distribution of waters from the Santa Ynez River
and its tributaries for irrigation, municipal, domestic and industrial uses for the
Cachuma Project Member Units.

Modified Accrual Basis - The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental
fund type. Revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and
“available to finance expenditures of the current period.” Expenditures are recognized
when the liability is incurred.

=

Municipal and Industrial Water (M&I Water) - Water made available from the
Cachuma Project other than Irrigation Water, M&I water includes water used for
municipal, industrial, and domestic purposes, and water used for purposes incidental to
domestic uses such as the water of landscaping or pasture for animals (i.e. horses) which
are kept for personal enjoyment.

N
National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) - The federal agency responsible for the
stewardship of national marine resources. https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/

(0)

Obligation - Amounts that a government may be legally required to meet out of its
resources. They include not only actual liabilities, but also encumbrances not yet paid.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - Benefits provided to retirees other than

pension, such as retiree health insurance.
Operating Expenses- All costs associated with the day-to-day business of COMB that
are not considered capital improvements or debt repayments.

P Item #7
age Exhibit #2

122 Page 157


https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/

Appendix | FY 2022-23

P

=

I

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Pass-Through Charges - Charges from the United States Bureau of Reclamation and
other state agencies which are paid by the Cachuma Project Member Units. These
charges are not expenses of COMB but are charged and paid by the agency.

Project Water - Water that is developed, diverted, stored, or delivered by the United
States pursuant to the Project Water Rights, including accretions to the Tecolote Tunnel.

Projected - An estimate of revenues and expenditures based on past trends, the present
economic situation and future financial forecasts.

Proprietary Fund - A method of accounting for a government’s ongoing organizations
and activities that are similar to those often found in the private sector.

Resolution - A special or temporary order of a legislative body; an order of a legislative
body requiring less legal formality than an ordinance or statute.

Revenue - An inflow of assets, not necessarily in cash, in exchange for services
rendered.

Right of Way (ROW) - The legal right, established by usage or grant, to pass along a
specific route through grounds or property belonging to another.

Santa Ynez Exchange Agreement - An agreement between Central Coast Water
Authority, Carpinteria Valley Water District, Goleta Water District, La Cumbre Mutual
Water Company, Montecito Water District, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation
District, Improvement District No. 1 (SYRWCD ID No.1), and the City of Santa Barbara.
Among other things, this agreement provides for the exchange of SYRWCD ID No.1’s
Cachuma Project entitlement for a like amount of State water that would otherwise be
delivered to the other South Coast project participants which are signatory to the
agreement.

SCADA System - The Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System is a
computer system that collects data, processes the data and corrects and/or instructs the
operators on corrective actions to take.

Page

123

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 158



Appendix | FY 2022-23

I

o

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

State Water Project (SWP) - SWP, under the supervision of the California Department
of Water Resources, is a water storage and delivery system of reservoirs, aqueducts,
power plants and pumping plants extending more than 700 miles and serves urban and
agricultural agencies from the San Francisco Bay area to Southern California.
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/State-Water-Project

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) - The SWRCB oversees the allocation
of the state's water resources to various entities and for diverse uses, from agricultural
irrigation to hydro electrical power generation to municipal water supplies, and for
safeguarding the cleanliness and purity of Californians’ water. The State Water Board
also provides financial assistance to local governments and non-profit agencies to help
build or rejuvenate wastewater treatment plants, and protect, restore and monitor
water quality, wetlands, and estuaries. https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/

Surface Water - As defined under the California Surface Water Treatment Rule,
California Code of Regulations Title 22, Section 64651.83, surface water means “all
water open to the atmosphere and subject to surface runoff” and hence would include all
lakes, rivers, streams, and other water bodies. Surface water includes all groundwater
sources that are deemed to be under the influence of surface water (i.e., springs, shallow
wells, wells close to rivers, etc.), which must comply with the same level of treatment as
surface water.

Table A — Table A is an exhibit that corresponds to the contracts between the
California Department of Water Resources and the 29 State Water Project (SWP) water
contractors, in which are defined the terms and conditions governing the water delivery
and cost repayment for the SWP. All water-supply-related costs of the SWP are paid by
the contractors, and Table A serves as a basis for allocating some of the costs among the
contractors. In addition, Table A plays a key role in the annual allocation of available
supply among contractors. Table A is simply contractual language for apportioning
available supply and cost obligations under the contract.

Table A Water — The maximum amount of State Water Project (SWP) water that the
State agreed to make available to an SWP contractor for delivery during the year. Table
A amounts determine the maximum water a contractor may request each year from the
California Department of Water Resources. The State and SWP contractors also use
Table A amounts to serve as a basis for allocation of some SWP costs among the
contractors.

Page

124

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 159


https://water.ca.gov/Programs/State-Water-Project
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/

Appendix | FY 2022-23

o

=

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Transferred Project Works Contract - Transfer Agreement for the Operation and
Maintenance of the Cachuma Project Transferred Works — Cachuma Project, California
(Contract No. 14-06-200-5222R) - An agreement between the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
and the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board. The purpose of the agreement is to
transfer the responsibility of operating and maintaining the Cachuma Project Works to
the Cachuma Member Units.

U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) - USBR is a federal
agency under the U.S. Department of the Interior, which oversees water resource
management, specifically as it applies to the oversight and operation of the diversion,
delivery, and storage projects that it has built throughout the western United States for
irrigation, water supply, and attendant hydroelectric power generation.
https://www.usbr.gov/

w

Warren Act Contract (Contract No. 5-07-20-W1281) - A contract between the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation and the Central Coast Water Authority and provides for the
delivery and storage of non-project State Water in the federal facility referred to as the
Cachuma Project.

Warren Act MOU Trust Fund - A trust fund established under a memorandum of
understanding by and between the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and the Cachuma Project
Authority for the purposes of defining the Warren Act Trust Fund and use of funds,
affiliated committees and responsibilities of parties. COMB and the Cachuma Project
Authority merged in 1996, with COMB as the successor agency.

Water Rights - The legal right of a user to use water from a water source (i.e., a lake,
river, stream, creek, pond, or source of groundwater).

Water Year - A continuous 12-month period for which hydrologic records are compiled
and summarized. Different agencies may use different calendar periods for their water
years. For the California Department of Water Resources, a water year is October 1
through September 30.

Watershed — A land area from which water drains into a stream, river, or reservoir.

The watershed for a major river may encompass a number of smaller watersheds that
ultimately combine at a common point.

Page

125

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 160


https://www.usbr.gov/

This page left blank intentionally

Item #7
Exhibit #2
Page 161



Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105
www.cachuma-board.org



http://www.cachuma-board.org/



















RESOLUTION NO. 751

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE

CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
APPROVING THE LAKE CACHUMA EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY

SECURED PIPELINE PROJECT, AUTHORIZING A CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN
EXCESS OF ONE MILLION DOLLARS FOR THE PROJECT AS PROVIDED
HEREIN, SELECTING A CONTRACTOR, CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
SUPPORT SERVICES CONSULTANT, AND ENGINEERING DURING
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES; APPROVING CONTRACT AGREEMENTS FOR THE
PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING RELATED ACTIONS THERETO

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board (COMB) is a joint powers
authority and public entity, organized and existing in the County of Santa Barbara in accordance
with Government Code Section 6500 et seg., and operating pursuant to the 1996 Amended and
Restated Agreement for the Establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and Maintain the
Cachuma Project - Cachuma Operation And Maintenance Board, dated May 23, 1996 (“Amended
and Restated Agreement”), as amended by an Amendment to the Amended and Restated
Agreement made effective September 16, 2003; and as amended by the Second Amendment to the
1996 Amended and Restated Agreement made effective November 20, 2018 (collectively the Joint
Powers Agreement or JPA); and

WHEREAS, the Member Agencies of COMB are the Goleta Water District, the City of
Santa Barbara, the Montecito Water District, and the Carpinteria VValley Water District; and

WHEREAS, COMB operates and maintains Cachuma Project facilities pursuant to a
Transfer of Operation and Maintenance Contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation
(Reclamation); and

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2021, California Governor Newsom proclaimed a state of
emergency for Santa Barbara County due to drought conditions and directed state agencies to take
further actions to bolster drought resilience and prepare for potential impacts to communities,
businesses and ecosystems; and

WHEREAS, as of May 2022, the National Integrated Drought Information System, a
division of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), is publicly advising,
among other things, that 100% of Santa Barbara County remains affected by severe drought and
that the period January to March 2022 was the third driest such period during the past 128 years;
and

WHEREAS, as of May 2022, Lake Cachuma is below 45% storage capacity and is
expected to lose the ability to gravity-feed into the lower gates of the intake tower, should the
current dry conditions and severe drought persist; and

WHEREAS, in early 2019, through a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) process,
COMB engaged Makai Ocean Engineers, Inc. (Makai) to complete a feasibility study for the Lake
Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project (“Project”), and after approval

1600835.1 1

Item #8

Exhibit #1

Page 1



from the COMB Governing Board, further engaged Makai to complete designs, specifications and
bid solicitation documents for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Project was recommended as a Phase 2 Management Action in the
comprehensive 2020 Lake Cachuma Water Quality and Sediment Management Study prepared by
COMB consultant Woodard and Curran, wherein the Project was referred to as the "North Portal
Intake Tower Gate 5 Extension”; and

WHEREAS, the Project involves only the installation of a bottom-mounted (secured)
pipeline connected to the existing intake tower at Lake Cachuma and extending 3,600 feet to the
west, allowing access to deeper and colder lake water. The secured pipeline will consist of new
36” HDPE pipe anchored to the bottom of Lake Cachuma with approximately 160 precast concrete
collars. The lake-end of the pipeline will include a screened gravity intake system that would
allow the continued use of the lowest gate on the intake tower (Gate 5), which will allow continued
gravity water flow to the Tecolote Tunnel and into the South Coast Conduit (SCC); and

WHEREAS, should the current severe drought conditions continue into the winter of
2022-2023, only then will COMB staff decide whether to request that the COMB Board consider
the approval of the temporary installation and operation of the related Emergency Pumping Facility
(EPF floating barge or pump station), possibly in the Spring/Summer 2023. The secured pipeline
has a flexible connection that could be attached to the EPF floating barge at the Site 1 location,
3,600 feet from the intake tower, if and when it is necessary in the future; and

WHEREAS, in the history of Lake Cachuma, an emergency pumping facility has been
installed on three (3) separate occasions: in 1957, 1990 and 2014-2017; and

WHEREAS, the objectives of the Project are to (1) reduce the elevation triggers for
installing the temporary EPF floating pump station; (2) eliminate the need to install and remove
temporary anchor piles and floating pipeline; (3) eliminate the need to store any pipeline near the
shore of the lake; (4) reduce the costs for any subsequent use of the EPF floating barge; and (5)
reduce the period between initial EPF floating barge deployment and operation from over one (1)
year to 120 days; and

WHEREAS, to the extent the temporary EPF pumping barge is needed in the future, the
COMB Board will be specifically asked to approve that particular component under a separate and
distinct Board governing resolution that will designate and comply with the requirements outlined
in the environmental documents. More specifically, in the event the temporary EPF floating barge
is needed and approved by the COMB Board in the future, its installation and use will be expressly
prohibited from diverting (1) unallocated Cachuma Project water, (2) water credited to Water
Right 89-18 Above Narrows and Below Narrows accounts, (3) Minimum Pool (12,000-acre feet),
and (4) any water needed to meet federal Endangered Species Act (ESA) requirements and Water
Right 2019-0148 requirements; and

L 1f necessary and when essential for COMB to move any Board approved EPF floating barge from the Site 1 location
to a Site 2 location (previously used in 2016), COMB will operate the EPF floating barge with the intent to maintain
the Lake elevation at 656 feet or higher prior to the start of the downstream release for the Below Narrows Account,
provided that (1) the Below Narrows Account has water credits and (2) the sum of the Above Narrows Account and
the Below Narrows Account exceeds 6,000 acre-feet prior to such a release.

1600835.1 2

Item #8

Exhibit #1

Page 2



WHEREAS, it is necessary for COMB to undertake this emergency action to maintain the
service of an existing water entry gate (Gate 5), and related actions thereto, thereby ensuring the
continuing gravity conveyance and supply of Lake Cachuma Project water, State Project and
supplemental purchased water through the intake tower to the Tecolote Tunnel/SCC and then to
COMB's South Coast Member Agencies for distribution to their customers and residents; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board desires to approve the Project and associated
expenditures; and

WHEREAS, formal bid solicitation for the construction portion of the Project was posted
at a public bid room and on the COMB website on Thursday, April 7, 2022, with a mandatory pre-
bid conference site visit occurring on Tuesday, April 19, 2022. Three (3) contractors attended the
pre-bid site visit, including Schock Contracting, Toro Enterprises, and Cushman Contracting
Corporation (CCC); and

WHEREAS, one bid was received by the published deadline, with the sealed bid publicly
opened on Thursday, May 5, 2022, at 2:01 pm at the COMB Headquarters office. The bid
evaluation was performed by Makai, with CCC being responsive and responsible, and with a not-
to-exceed bid proposal of $4,158,035.00. CCC has been determined to have the requisite
equipment, personnel and technical expertise to successfully complete the construction of this
Project; and

WHEREAS, COMB staff recommends that the Governing Board authorize the COMB
General Manager, contingent upon ratification of the Project by COMB's Member Agencies
pursuant to Section 1.3(h) et seq. of COMB's JPA, to issue a Notice of Award to CCC, execute a
contract with CCC in an amount not-to-exceed $4,158,035.00, and issue a Notice to Proceed per
the contract documents for construction of the Project (Construction Contract Agreement); and

WHEREAS, in consideration of “time is of the essence” resulting from the current global
supply chain issues and petroleum products cost volatilityy, COMB staff recommends the
Governing Board authorize the General Manager to issue a Notice of Intent to Award to CCC
(limited to $25,000 for preparation of long lead item submittals), in the interim period prior to
ratification by COMB’s Member Agencies, to ameliorate any potential delays in ordering materials
and services critical to the Project (Limited Preliminary Work); and

WHEREAS, an RFP for construction management support services was issued on
Thursday, April 14, 2022, with proposals due on Thursday, May 5, 2022, at 4:00 pm. Two (2)
proposals were received and evaluated on each firm’s ability to meet all aggregate Project
requirements based on responsiveness of the proposal, specialized experience and technical
competence, cost of services estimate, and proposed technical approach. The most suitable
proposal was submitted by Flowers & Associates, Inc. (Flowers) in the amount of $130,330.00;
and

WHEREAS, COMB staff recommends that the Governing Board authorize the General
Manager, contingent upon ratification of the Project by COMB's Member Agencies pursuant to
Section 1.3(h) et seq. of COMB's JPA, to issue a Notice of Award to Flowers, execute a
Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Flowers in the amount of $130,330.00, and issue a
Notice to Proceed per the PSA documents for construction management services on the Project
(PSA for Management Services); and

1600835.1 3

Item #8

Exhibit #1

Page 3



WHEREAS, Makai has completed the final designs for the Project. COMB staff
subsequently issued the bid documents for construction of the Project with construction planned
as early as September 2022. In support of these plans, and as the design engineer, Makai submitted
a proposal to provide design support services during the construction phase of the Project
(controlled submergence). Makai will review key submittals (plans and materials) from the
contractor, provide input on requests for information, perform technical analysis (if needed), and
will provide two (2) engineers to be on site during construction of the Project who are experienced
in the installation of the secured pipeline and intake assembly. Makai’s role will be technical and
in an observational capacity for installation support services during the course of the Project; and

WHEREAS, COMB staff recommends that the Governing Board authorize the General
Manager, contingent upon ratification of the Project by COMB's Member Agencies pursuant to
Section 1.3(h) et seq. of COMB's JPA, to issue a Notice of Award to Makai in the amount of
$90,000.00, execute a contract agreement with Makai for the engineering support services during
construction of the Project, and to approve such an agreement between COMB and Makai
(Engineering Support During Construction Contract Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the Project is in excess of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) and, pursuant to Section 1.3(h) et seq. of COMB's JPA, the Governing Board
desires to contingently authorize such expenditure and acknowledges that authorization of the
subject expenditure for the Project requires both unanimous consent by the Governing Board, as
well as ratification by each and all of COMB’s Member Agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board, pursuant to a competitive, publicly solicited bid
process desires to select a contractor for the Project, and to approve the Construction Contract
Agreement between COMB and CCC; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board, pursuant to a competitive, publicly solicited RFP
process desires to select a construction management support services consultant for the Project,
and to approve the PSA for Management Services between COMB and Flowers; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Board, pursuant to COMB’s procurement policy regarding
sole-source contracts, desires to continue the engagement of Makai for the Engineering Support
During Construction Contract Agreement for the Project, and to approve such agreement between
COMB and Makai; and

WHEREAS, in 2019, Reclamation announced the selection of COMB to receive federal
grant funding for the Project through their WaterSMART Drought Resiliency Grant funding
program; and

WHEREAS, in March 2022, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)
announced the selection of COMB to receive State grant funding for the Project from the Urban
and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, COMB is the responsible agency for purposes of environmental review of
the Project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Public Resources
Code § 21000 et seq., and the State “Guidelines for Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act”; and

1600835.1 4

Item #8

Exhibit #1

Page 4



WHEREAS, on December 3, 2022, in compliance with CEQA, COMB filed with the
Santa Barbara County Clerk a Notice of CEQA Exemption (NOE) for the Project. The NOE
identified the applicable exemptions as: (1) CEQA Guidelines Exemption section 15301 et seq.,
relating to a categorical exemption for existing facilities in order to allow the continued operational
delivery of reservoir water to the inlet tower; and (2) CEQA Guidelines Exemption section 15269
et seq., relating to actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency. During the 35-day notice
period, no comments to the NOEs were received by COMB; and

WHEREAS, in December 2021, Reclamation issued a Categorical Exclusion Checklist
(CEC) for the Project pursuant to the requirements in 40 CFR 1501.4 of the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) procedures; and

WHEREAS, all environmental permits will be obtained prior to construction of the
Project; and

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing, COMB proposes to construct the Project in response
to the current severe drought conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
COMB AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Governing Board finds and determines that the facts set forth in the above
recitals and in the documents referenced herein are true and correct.

2. The Governing Board approves the Project and a capital expenditure of funds for
the Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project in
excess of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), with such approval contingent
upon ratification of such expenditure by each and all of COMB's Member
Agencies in accordance with Section 1.3(h) et seq. of the JPA, receipt of all
applicable permits, and available funding.

3. The Governing Board selects Cushman Contracting Corporation (CCC) as the
construction contractor for the Project, and upon ratification of the Project by the
Member Agencies, authorizes the General Manager to issue a Notice-of-Award,
execute the Construction Contract Agreement, and issue a Notice-to-Proceed for
the Project in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Construction
Contract Agreement, in an amount not-to-exceed $4,158,035.00.

4. The Governing Board selects Flowers & Associates, Inc. as the construction
management support services consultant for the Project and, upon ratification of
the Project by the Member Agencies, authorizes the General Manager to issue a
Notice-of-Award, execute the PSA for Management Services for the Project, and
issue a Notice-to-Proceed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the PSA
for Management Services, in an amount not-to-exceed $130,330.00.

5. The Governing Board approves the continued engagement with Makai Ocean
Engineering, Inc. as the engineering during construction support services
consultant for the Project and, upon ratification of the Project by the Member
Agencies, authorizes the General Manager to execute the Engineering Support

1600835.1 5

Item #8
Exhibit #1
Page 5



1600835.1

7.

During Construction Contract Agreement for the Project in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Engineering Support During Construction Contract
Agreement, in an amount not-to-exceed $90,000.00.

COMB’s officers and staff, including the General Manager, are hereby authorized
and directed, pursuant to this contingent approval, to do all things necessary and
appropriate (including, but not limited to, the preparation and review of
documents, the application for and processing of necessary permits and filing of
environmental documents and any other actions) in order to advance the
processing and final execution of the Construction Contract Agreement, PSA for
Management Services and the Engineering Support During Construction Contract
Agreement, as well as the implementation of the Project, including the Limited
Preliminary Work.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board, this 23™ day of May 2022, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:

Nayes:

Absent/Abstain:

APPROVED:

President of the Governing Board

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Governing Board

Item #8
Exhibit #1
Page 6



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

Non-Competitive Bid (NCB) Justification

Date: May 23, 2022

To: COMB Board of Directors

From: Engineering / Operations Division

Project: Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project -Engineering

Design Support

Complete responses must be provided for all of the following questions:
A. Why is the submission of a NCB necessary and what are the determining factors?

COMB staff recommended and the Board approved engineering support for Makai Ocean Engineering,
Inc. to provide design services during construction to secure the Site 1 pipeline component of the
Emergency Pumping Facility Project to the bottom of the lake.

The goals of the modified design were to: (1) reduce the elevation triggers for installing the EPFP; (2)
eliminate the need to install and remove temporary anchor piles; (3) eliminate the need to store the
pipeline on the shoreline of the lake; and (4) reduce the deployment period from one year to 120 days.
A modified design would allow the decision to deploy the facility to be made in the month of April once
lake conditions are known, and to have the pumping facility operational by August. The secured pipeline
would also reduce the cost for each subsequent use of the Emergency Pumping Facility. With a secured
pipeline installed, the remaining assembly would include the floating pump station which would connect
to the secured pipeline at Site 1.

Staff sent a Request for Proposal to two experienced underwater HDPE pipeline installation engineering
firms, Makai Ocean Engineering, Inc. and Cross Marine Projects, Inc., to request costs for a feasibility
study. The study included reviewing previous surge analysis, preliminary design reports, and
determining whether the current pipeline stored at the lake could be utilized for the submerged
application. Also requested was a recommendation for pipeline if the current pipeline did not meet
standards, a ballast design, options to mitigate air pipeline hydraulics, conceptual connection to a floating
pump station, and a probable construction cost estimate. The content of the proposal also required a
summary of qualifications, proposed technical approach, schedule, and estimated time to complete.

Staff reviewed the two proposals and recommended Makai Ocean Engineering, Inc. to perform the Lake
Cachuma conveyance operations feasibility study. Makai Ocean Engineering has extensive state-of-the-
art experience in marine installation of HDPE. Makai also provided the feasibility study at a lower cost
in addition to a detailed technical approach including potential innovative solutions.

Makai completed the feasibility study in 2019, initial designs in 2020, and updated the designs based on
the 2021 bathimetric survey in 2022. Based on their performance on the feasibility study and engineering

COMB Page 1
Item #8

Exhibit #2
Page 1



design of the project, COMB plans to continue having Makai provided design engineering support
services during construction.

Makai would provide review of the contractor submittals including, shop drawings, technical data sheets
for products and components, and deployment plan. Makai would provide input on Request for
Information from the contractor based on the final design. Makai will have two engineers to support the
HDPE pipeline using the controlled submergence method or any other approved installation method.

B. What are the consequences of not having this NCB approved?

The Secured Pipeline Project involves specialized methods. It is important to have the design engineer
review submittals, respond to RFI, and review the deployment to ensure that the project is constructed
as designed. If the NCB was not approved, we would not have the design engineer available to review
key information, and respond to request for information during the construction process.

C. How will COMB ensure adequate planning to prevent submittal of NCB’s for goods or
services that should have been competitively bid?

The original request for proposal for the feasibility study was competitively bid. The prevailing
engineering firm, Makai Ocean Engineering, Inc. performed extremely successful on the feasibility study
and project designs. By approving a contract for the additional design services during construction,
COMB is able to obtain engineering consistency, limit risk and costs for this critically important design
work.

RESTRICTED CONTRACTOR JUSTIFICATION (NON COMPETITIVE BID)

A. PRICE ANALYSIS
1. How was the price offered determined to be fair and reasonable?

COMB requested an engineering design support quotation from Makai Ocean Engineering, Inc. based
on their former competitive proposal. Makai’s hourly rate has been verified to be highly competitive
with other engineering firms. In addition, COMB staff compared the amount of submittals that will
likely need to be reviewed, provided an allowance for request for information, and estimated the time
required to be onsite for the installation portion of the project. COMB staff estimate of the level of effort
is $87,000. The proposal estimate for $90,000 on a time & materials basis. This is a conservative estimate
of the level of effort and actual costs have the potential to be lower than proposed.

2. Describe any cost savings realized or costs avoided by acquiring the goods/services
from this contractor.

By continuing to utilize this engineering firm who was priced much lower than the competition for the
feasibility study, COMB would continue to cost effectively complete this critically important project.
Makai Ocean Engineering, Inc. has proven to be organized, highly skilled, and extremely competent to
perform the continued effort on the design services during construction for the secured pipeline project.

COMB Page 2

Item #8
Exhibit #2
Page 2



Mission Statement:

“To provide a reliable source of water
fo our member agencies in an efficient and cost effective
manner for the betterment of life in our communities.”

May 23, 2022

General Manager Report

The following summary provides the Board with information and an overview of progress on current COMB
activities.

Administration
e Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Audit) for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP is scheduled to begin the annual comprehensive financial audit for fiscal year
ending June 30, 2022. The audit is comprised of review of the statement of net position, related statements
of revenue, expenses and changes in net position, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements. It is anticipated the results of the audit will be presented to the
Administrative Committee and the Board of Directors in December 2022.

e Internal Operational Annual Work Plans

In conjunction with the development of the annual operating budget, internal operational work plans are in
the process of being updated by each division. These plans are focused on planning and preparation for
the upcoming fiscal year work activities and provide the Division Managers and staff with guidance on
scheduling and achieving the completion of varied operational activities performed by COMB staff.

e Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP) Meeting
Proposition 1 - Round 2 IRWMP Implementation Grant Program

The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) is administering the Round 2 Integrated Regional
Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant solicitation using funds authorized by the Water Quality,
Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1). DWR just released the final guidelines
and Proposal Solicitation Package (PSP) for Round 2 funding. Allocated funding for the Central Coast
region for Round 2 is approximately $3,331,045: $3,028,224 for general implementation and $302,821 for
Disadvantaged Communities.

Open solicitation for local projects was held rom January 17" to February 17, 2022. An IRWMP project
review sub-committee was formed at the February 2022 meeting. The sub-committee will develop a project
ranking and scoring rubric for presentation and adoption at a future meeting. All projects will be reviewed
by the sub-committee in accordance with the rubric and presented at the next IRWMP meeting. If a project
is not selected, project proponents will have two weeks to appeal decisions to the sub-committee for
rescoring and ranking. The final project list must be adopted by the Cooperating Partners prior to
preparation of the application. PSP submittal dates have not been established by the group to date.

Respectfully Submitted,

Janct Gingras

General Manager

Item #9
Page 1























































































	Item #14a - Cachuma Project Water Reports.pdf
	MetUse
	4.SWP Deliveries 2022.04.30.pdf
	SWP

	3.Water Storage 2022.04.30.pdf
	Stor

	2.Water Production Use 2022.04.30.pdf
	ProdUse


	Item #12 - Fisheries Division Report.pdf
	TO:    Janet Gingras, General Manager

	Item #11 - Operations Division Report.pdf
	TO:    Janet Gingras, General Manager

	Item #10 - Engineers Report.pdf
	TO:    Janet Gingras, General Manager

	Item #7 - Resolution No. 750 FY 2022-23 Budget.pdf
	Presented for review and adoption is the COMB FY 2022-23 Operating Budget. The budget reflects projected operating expenses for the Operations Division, the Fisheries Division as well as the General and Administrative expenses. These projected expendi...
	In addition to the annual Operating Budget, COMB collects and manages various other assessments considered as pass-through revenues and charges.  COMB has the authority, granted by various agreements, for administering the provisions, collection and p...
	For FY 2022-23, the total projected obligation for the Cachuma Project is $8.9M and is compared to the FY 2021-22 total projected obligation of $8.0M as shown in Table 3.
	Table 3: Projected Obligation by Cachuma Project Member Unit

	Item #6 Exhibit #2 - Resolution No. 749 2021-2025 IIP Amendment Descr.pdf
	APPENDIX A: IIP PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS
	South Coast Conduit AVAR Valve Replacement / Relocation
	South Coast Conduit Blow-Off Nozzle / Valve Replacement
	Rehabilitate South Coast Conduit Lateral Structures
	Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Upgrades
	Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Pump Station Project
	Lake Cachuma Emergency Pumping Facility Secured Pipeline Project
	Tecolote Tunnel Concrete Deterioration Investigation
	South Coast Conduit Line Valve in Montecito Section for Repairs
	Lake Cachuma Evaporation and Water Quality Buoy
	North Portal Jet Flow Control Valve Replacement
	Control Valve Replacement Program
	Meter Replacement Program
	Sheffield Tunnel Evaluation and Repair
	Lauro Reservoir Intake Assessment and Repair
	North Portal Intake Tower Seismic Assessment
	Tecolote Tunnel Concrete Deterioration Investigation

	Item #5 - Resolution No. 748 Local Emergency.pdf
	LEGAL CONCURRENCE:
	LIST OF EXHIBITS:
	1) Resolution No. 748

	Item #4 - Verbal Reports from Committees.pdf
	_______________________________________________________________________________________
	5.11.2022 Operations Committee Meeting Agenda.pdf
	_____________________________________________________________________________________





